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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETRMES

Dear Shareholders,

Since year 2018, we have just passed through another year of difficulty.
COVID-19 is definitely an unprecedented event of the Year which affects all
walks of life. The quarantine measures (e.g. lockdown of cities) of major
economies led to the suspension of business activities which in turn affected

the results of our investments or potential investments.

Following the availability of vaccine, it hopes that peoples’ living and business
activities could be returned to normal in late of year 2021.

At last, | would like to take this opportunity expressing my warmest thanks to
your support.

Cheng Hairong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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Business Review

Market Review

With the outbreak of COVID-19 in late December of Year 2019, quarantine
measures have been imposed by major economies which include travel
restriction and lockdown of cities during the Year. The living of peoples was
seriously affected and business activities of various business sectors were
interfered by the measures which in turn affected the stock markets for the
Year.

Although various business sectors were affected by COVID-19, the research
and development of vaccine and peoples spent more time at home led to the
booming of new economy stocks (mainly medicine related and tech stocks
providing online platform) near the end of the Year.

Operational Review

During the Year, the Group continued its investment activities in both listed
and unlisted investments and other related financial assets. Those
investments which are held for revenue in nature for tax purpose are held for
trading in nature. While those investments which are held for capital in nature
for tax purpose are held for long term in nature.

As mentioned in market review section, the stock market was affected by the
COVID-19 and hence the listed investments of the Group incurred a further
unrealized loss at Year End Date.

During the Year, we had disposed of certain loss-making listed investments
so that the gross proceeds from the disposal of financial assets at FVTPL
which are revenue in nature had been increased from that of last year.

Other than the listed investments, the Group did not have new unlisted
investment during the Year.
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Financial Review

Results for the Year

The Group reported a loss after tax of approximately HK$67 million for the
Year which is similar to the loss of HK$78 million for Year 2019. Other than
the administrative expenses, investment management expense and finance
costs which were rather stable, the loss for the Year was mainly due to the

following reasons:

U

(i)

(iii)

a loss of approximately HK$36 million (Year 2019: HK$55 million) arose
from the change in fair value of revenue in nature listed equity
investments at FVTPL which was caused by the fluctuation of the stock
market. This loss of HK$36 million included a realised loss of
approximately HK$17 million (Year 2019: HK$2 million);

a loss of approximately HK$7 million (Year 2019: HK$4 million) arose
from the change in fair value of capital in nature listed equity
investments at FVTPL which was caused by the fluctuation of the stock
market. This loss of HK$7 million included no realised loss (Year 2019:
HK$0.06 million); and

an impairment loss of approximately HK$5 million on earnest money
deposit for a potential investment project (Year 2019: nil).

Gross proceeds from operation

Bt %5 Bl R

REERE

REEBRAFEHEBHRT%EIE 16,7008 %
JT B2019F FE M B E7.800E B THE ©
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) BERTRE BhRaEE 2R FER
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BB R #1,7008 8 7T (20195 F Z : 200
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iy FEABRMEE BEAEE 2R AFER
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B 18 #7008 7B 7T (20194F F /€ : 4008
FEIL) c ZTO0B B LB BT ERED #
REBQCOI9FFEE 68ET) &
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CEMBRELARE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TE R FAET

Gross proceeds from disposal of financial assets at HEXRAFETAEBR ZSR

FVTPL which are revenue in nature for tax purposes BEGBBEmME AlEEE)

2SR IEBE 17,123 8,439
Dividend income A% B A 2,260 3,313
19,383 11,752

As mentioned in the business review section above, we had disposed of
certain loss-making listed investments so that the gross proceeds from the
disposal of financial assets at FVTPL which are revenue in nature had been
increased from that of Year 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

Paxlas % N
B IR E am Al
Other gains and losses Httlhzm R EBE
Other gains and losses mainly comprise of fair value loss of financials assets E g K EBIEFEBFELR A L EFT AEZ
at FVTPL which is analysed in the table below: ZEMEECAFEBE ERTRPMHEL
DT
For tax purpose
RBEEmMS
Revenue in Capital in
nature nature Total
KatE EXMEE FER-E]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

FER FEx FEx
2020 2020 F
Realised loss B2 EE (16,526) - (16,526)
Unrealised loss REEEE (19,493) (6,753) (26,246)

(36,019) (6,753) (42,772)
2019 20194
Realised loss B &R 8 (1,801) (67) (1,858)
Unrealised loss REBEEE (63,691) (8,781) (57,472)

(55,492) (3,838) (59,330)

Please refer to results for the Year section above and note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements for analysis and details.

Other Income

Other income for the Year mainly comprises of HK$324,000 (Year 2019: nil)
government subsidies received from the government of Hong Kong under the
Employment Support Scheme.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses include an impairment loss on earnest money
deposit of HK$4,870,000 (Year 2019: nil)

Among the administrative expenses (excluding the impairment loss on earnest
money deposit), staff remuneration of HK$4,286,000 (Year 2019:
HK$4,199,000) is the largest expenses which represents approximately 42%
(Year 2019: 37%) of the administrative expenses. Employees are regarded as
the most valuable asset and the Group is aimed to reward the staff with
competitive remuneration package.
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Investment management expenses

Investment management expense of HK$7,200,000 (Year 2019:
HK$7,200,000) represents expense paid to the investment manager for the
provision of investment management services to the Group. Please refer to
note 25 to the consolidated financial statements and the announcement of
the Company dated 18 December 2018 for details.

Finance cost

Finance cost includes interest payment to a securities broker for provision of
margin loan and interest expenses of lease liabilities.

In order to better utilise the resources, the Group used margin loan provided
by a securities broker for its investment in listed equity securities since 2017.
At Year End Date, the margin loan from a securities broker amounted to
approximately HK$38,750,000 (Year 2019: HK$49,884,000) and the related
interest expenses was approximately HK$4,280,000 (Year 2019:
HK$4,201,000). As mentioned above, the loss-making listed investments
were mainly disposed of near the year end. Hence, the interest payments for
both years are similar but the margin loan balance at Year End Date was
lower than that of Year 2019.

At Year End Date, the lease liabilities of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$176,000 (Year 2019: HK$506,000) and the related interest expenses was
approximately HK$30,000 (Year 2019: HK$42,000).

Investments/Significant Investments

The investment objective of the Group is to enhance the corporate value to
the Shareholders. The strategy of the Group is to identify and invest in both
listed and unlisted investments with potential of growth within their industries.
In identifying potential investment, the Group will consider its business
segment, operation, current value and the potential of going public. Currently,
the Group has no specific industry focus on potential investment.

As mentioned above, COVID-19 affected the stock market and hence, the
value of listed investments of the Group decreased at Year End Date.

At Year End Date, the Group held the following significant investments:
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TOM Group Limited (“TOM”) (2383.HK)

Information for this investment:
(i) during the Year, share price decreased by 45.24%.

(i) during the Year, the realized loss is HK$2,796,000 and unrealized loss
at Year End Date amounted to HK$31,528,000.

(i) at Year End Date, number and percentage of shares held are
38,924,000 shares and 0.98% respectively.

(iv)  at Year End Date, its size relative to the Group’s total assets is 20.71%.

Given ongoing uncertainties surrounding the timelines of COVID-19 vaccine
rollout and economic recovery in 2021, TOM Group will remain prudent in
managing its operations and double down on investments in high growth
businesses that will flourish in the post-pandemic economic environment in
order to create long term value for shareholders.

ITC Properties Group Ltd (“ITC”)
(199.HK)

Information for this investment:
(i) during the Year, share price decreased by 35.83%.

(ii) during the Year, realised loss is HK$Nil and the unrealized loss at Year
End Date amounted to HK$52,278,000 which is after the impairment
loss of HK$1,284,000 before the adoption of HKFRS 9.

(i) at Year End Date, number and percentage of shares held are
22,940,763 shares and 2.39% respectively.

(iv)  at Year End Date, its size relative to the Group’s total assets is 13.62%.

ITC will focus on the presale of the remaining blocks in Macau and the
remaining units in Hong Kong and the other local redevelopment projects in
Hong Kong to secure the revenue for the coming few years. In addition to
stepping their businesses further to the PRC, Macau, Canada and the United
Kingdom, ITC will keep on improving earnings and enhancing the
Shareholders’ value by working hard on the projects on hand and at the
same time, be selective and cautious on replenishing the ITC’s portfolio when
suitable opportunities arise.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
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Shaw Brothers Holdings Limited (“Shaw Brother”)
(953.HK)

Information for this investment:
(i) during the Year, share price decreased by 19.77%.

(ii) during the Year, realised loss is HK$3,108,000 and unrealized loss at
Year End Date amounted to HK$28,219,000 respectively.

(i) at Year End Date, number and percentage of shares held are
62,318,000 shares and 4.39% respectively.

(iv)  at Year End Date, its size relative to the Group’s total assets is 6.82%.

The outbreak of COVID-19 since early 2020 has dented the sentiment in
Hong Kong and mainland China’s entertainment industry as a whole. As a
result, there had been deferral in the release and development of certain films
and drama projects and decline in external commercial engagements in
artiste and event management businesses during the year.

Greater Bay Area Dynamic Growth Holding Limited (“Dynamic
Growth”) (1189.HK)

Information for this investment:

i) during the Year, share price decreased by 27.59%.

(ii) during the Year, realised loss is HK$Nil and the unrealized loss at Year

End Date amounted to HK$7,215,000 which is after the impairment
loss of HK$19,725,000 before the adoption of HKFRS 9.

(i) at Year End Date, number and percentage of shares held are
39,000,000 shares and 4.94% respectively.

(iv)  at Year End Date, its size relative to the Group’s total assets is 6.32%.
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The hotel sector is moving forward towards a ’'new normal’, with
unprecedented health and safety measures in place. Thus, Dynamic Growth
have begun consolidating internal operational efficiency in response to
change in the markets. Given the dynamic nature of these circumstances, the
revenue of Dynamic Growth will continue to be impacted during a period
when Dynamic Growth is taking strict precautionary measures to ensure the
health and safety of its employees, and supporting the steps taken by the
governments to control the further spread of COVID-19. However, the
widespread occurrence of COVID-19 should not cause long-term damage to
hotel sector but will inevitably be a short-term impact to their performance
and prospects. Dynamic Growth will attempt to stay vigilant and be proactive
in responding to these extraordinary with shareholders about the significance
for operating results.

Rakarta Limited (“Rakarta”)

Information for this investment:
(i) during the Year, fair value increased by HK$14,350,000.

(ii) during the Year, realised loss is HK$nil and unrealised loss at Year End
Date amounted to HK$9,990,000 respectively.

@iy  at Year End Date, number and percentage of shares held are 147
shares and 14.7% respectively.

(iv)  at Year End Date, its size relative to the Group’s total assets is 33.98%.

Rakarta Limited is an unlisted investment holding company with its subsidiary
principally engaged in zinc and lead mining in the PRC. The mine has
obtained the exploitation licence and is in the process of planning the
extraction of the minerals. Depending on the market conditions, the
management of the mine expects that the sales of the minerals, being
commonly used minerals, provide positive cash flows to the operation of the
mine in the future.

For a detailed understanding of the performance and future prospects of
those listed significant investments, please refer to the published annual/
interim reports of the respective listed companies as shown on the HKExnews
of the Stock Exchange. Other details of significant investments of the Group
are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

At Year End Date, the Group had: () cash and cash equivalent of
approximately HK$14,632,000 (Year 2019: HK$28,728,000); and (i) a loan of
approximately HK$38,750,000 (Year 2019: HK$49,884,000) from a securities
broker for margin financing of listed equity investments of the Group.
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In order to better utilize the resources, the Group used margin loan provided
by a securities broker for the investment in listed equity investments since
2017. Details of the margin loan are set out in note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio (total liabilities/total assets) at Year End Date was 31.42% (Year
2019: 26.87%).

Capital structure

It is the treasure policy in utilizing Shareholders’ fund and internal resources
primarily for the investing activities and daily operations of the Group. In order
to preserve resources for potential investments and daily operations, the
Group may also borrow from third parties when the circumstances thought
fit. Funds are mainly kept in HK$ and will be translated into foreign currencies
when necessary. The Group has no hedging policy.

Details of the margin loan are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Outlook

Following the roll out of vaccination campaign of major economies, the effect
of COVID-19 is expected to be alleviated gradually over year 2021. The
worldwide economies will be recovered and the performance of the
businesses will be improved.

Other Information

Charges on assets

Charges on assets of the Group are set out in note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Litigation
There was no outstanding litigation as at Year End Date.

Contingent liabilities

There were no contingent liabilities as at Year End Date.
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Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and
Related Hedges

During the Year, the investments of the Group were mainly denominated in
HK$, USD and RMB. Since HK$ is pegged to USD, significant exposure is
not expected in USD transactions and balances. During the Year, the bank
and cash balances in RMB were not significant and the exposure to RMB is
insignificant.

The Group does not have foreign exchange hedging policy. However,
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arises.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries,
Associates and Joint Ventures

During the Year, the Group did not have any material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

Major Customers and Suppliers

Due to the business nature, the Group has no major customer and supplier.
Therefore, there is no ageing analysis of the accounts receivable and
accounts payable.

Employee and Remuneration Policies

At Year End Date, the Group had 6 employees and 5 Directors. The
remuneration packages of the employees and Directors include monthly
salary, contribution to MPF Scheme, overtime payment, discretionary bonus
and directors’ fee. Remuneration policies of the Group is to reward the
employees and the Directors with remuneration packages in accordance with
the market situation and their performance from time to time. Remuneration
Committee will meet at least once a year to review the remuneration policy
and package of Directors and senior management of the Group. The
remuneration of other employees is determined by the managing director of
the Group. No Director or executive is involved in determining his/her own
remuneration. The Group has participated in the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of an independent trustee. Pursuant to the rules of the MPF
Scheme and the policy of the Group, the Group and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of their monthly
relevant income. Forfeited contribution can be used to reduce future
contribution of the Group. There was no forfeited contribution during the
Year.

On-the-job training and continuous professional development are important
elements to enhance the industry knowledge of the employees of the Group.
The Group encourages employees to attend training courses and
reimbursement will be made by the Group for those job-related training
courses. Besides, the Group will purchase relevant reference materials for the
employees’ on-the-job reference.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the Year.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

Discussion and analysis of the Group’s activities can be found in the

Management Discussion of this annual report which form part of this
directors’ report.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 49.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the Year (Year
2019: nil).

Share Capital

There were no movements in the share capital of the Company during the

Year. Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Plant and Equipment

Details of movements during the Year in plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Donations

During the Year, the Group made charitable donation amounting to
HK$20,000 (Year 2019: HK$20,000).
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Directors
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Director

Mr. CHENG Hairong (Chairman and Managing Director)

Non-Executive Director

Mr. LAU Tom Ko Yuen (Deputy Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. FENG Nien Shu
Mr. LUI Siu Tsuen, Richard
Ms. WONG Lai Kin, Elsa

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws, Ms. Wong Lai Kin, Elsa and
Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard shall retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management are as
follows:

Executive Director

Mr. Cheng Hairong, aged 61, was appointed as an executive Director and
managing Director in 2010 and 2016 respectively. He is the chairman and
managing Director of the Company and the chairman of the nomination
committee and the director of the subsidiaries of the Company. He has over
22 years of experience as an executive director and consultant in establishing
and managing listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Cheng has extensive
knowledge in China finance and investments in life sciences, biotech, energy
saving, tourism, trading and financial service sectors. Mr. Cheng was the vice
chairman and executive director of EPI (Holdings) Limited (689.HK) and the
chairman and executive director of Vision Tech International Holdings Limited
(922.HK) (currently known as “Anxian Yuan China Holdings Limited”). Both
companies are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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Non-Executive Director

Mr. Lau Tom Ko Yuen, aged 69, was appointed as non-executive Director
and subsequently re-designated as executive Director and appointed as
chairman of the Company in 2009. In 2010, he was redesignated as non-
executive Director and deputy chairman of the Company. He is a member of
the remuneration committee and the director of the subsidiaries of the
Company. He has over 45 years of international corporate development and
management experience in infrastructure developments as well as
construction and engineering services involving the road, rail, port, power,
telecommunications, mining and resources sectors in the Asia Pacific Region.
Mr. Lau was the chairman and managing director of PY| Corporation Limited
(498.HK) and has been redesigned to chairman on 18 January 2021.Mr. Lau
was the deputy chairman and executive director of South Shore Holdings
Limited (577.HK) and resigned on 10 June 2020. Both companies are listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Feng Nien Shu, aged 55, was appointed as an INED in 2009. He is the
chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of the audit
committee and nomination committee of the Company. He holds a Master of
Business Administration degree from the University of Windsor in Canada and
a Bachelor of Arts degree from the York University in Canada. He has over 24
years of experience in investment, merger and acquisition in China and South
East Asia.

Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard, aged 65, was appointed as an INED in 2009.
He is the chairman of the audit committee and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company. He is a fellow member of each of HKICPA and
The Chartered Institute of Management Accountants in the United Kingdom.
He holds a Master of Business Administration degree from the University of
Adelaide in Australia. He has over 30 years of experience in property
investment, corporate finance and media and entertainment business. Mr. Lui
is currently an executive director of eSun Holdings Limited (571.HK) and
Media Asia Group Holdings Limited (8075.HK). Both companies are listed on
the Stock Exchange.
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Ms. Wong Lai Kin, Elsa, aged 55, was appointed as an INED in 2009. She
is a member of the audit committee and nomination committee of the
Company. She holds a Bachelor's and Master’s degree in Law from The
University of Hong Kong, as well as a Master’s degree in Corporate Finance
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Ms. Wong is a solicitor of the
Supreme Court of Hong Kong and Supreme Court of England and Wales, a
member of the Hong Kong Law Society and Hong Kong Society for Financial
Analysts. She also holds the Chartered Financial Analyst designation. Ms.
Wong has over 29 years of experience in the legal profession, with majority
years working as corporate counsel and company secretary of Hong Kong
listed companies. Ms. Wong was previously an independent non-executive
director of PYI Corporation Limited (498.HK), a company listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange, and resigned on 3 February 2021.

On 21 December 2017, all Directors have entered into appointment letters
with the Company for a term commencing from 21 December 2017 and
continue until terminated by either party by not less than three months prior
written notice or any time agreed by both parties. They are subject to the
requirement that one-third of all the Directors shall retire from office by
rotation at each annual general meeting pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the
Company.

During the Year, the executive Director and non-executive Director have not
received remuneration from the Company and each of the INEDs received
director’s fee of HK$100,000 per annum. The director’s fee for each of the
INEDs will remain at HK$100,000 per annum for year 2021 which is
determined with reference to their duties and the prevailing market conditions.

Senior Management

Mr. Yau Wing Yiu, aged 53, was appointed as financial controller and
company secretary of the Group in 2011 and 2015 respectively. He is also
the director of the subsidiaries of the Group. He is an associate member of
HKICPA and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. He holds a bachelor’s degree of arts in Accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in Hong Kong. He has over 26 years of
experience in finance and accounting gained from international accounting
firms and listed companies. Mr. Yau is currently an independent non-
executive director of Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited (1480.HK) which is
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Confirmation of Independence of
Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual confirmation
of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all of the INEDs are independent.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-Laws, Directors shall be indemnified out of
the assets and profits of the Company against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain by or
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution
of their duty, or supposed duty, provided that this indemnity shall not extend
to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to the
Directors.

The Company has taken out and maintained appropriate insurance cover in
respect of potential legal actions against the Directors.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares

At Year End Date, the interests and short positions of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company and any of their associates in the Shares and
underlying Shares or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as
follows:

Long positions in the Shares
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BARRREBES RPEHRIIFI2FEATFE
Z B R AR RIE AR R KB ARER
EFARTREANE RFEEH BEFERAAQF
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Percentage of
issued share

Personal Family* Corporate* Total capital of the

Interests Interests Interests Interests Company

HARRAF

ERRTREAZ

Name of Director E=E#H AR RIRER" AR wmER BotE

Lau Tom Ko Yuen IS — 266,890,840 266,390,840 266,890,840 22.03%
(Note)
(B E)

Cheng Hairong IBR=ES 9,370,000 — - 9,370,000 0.78%

*  Beneficial owner * EmEAA

* Interests of spouse

# Interests beneficially held by the company itself or through companies controlled
by it

Note:

266,890,840 Shares were held by Favor Hero Investments Limited, a company
controlled as to 51% by Sun Matrix Limited. Sun Matrix Limited was controlled as to
50% by Mr. Lau Tom Ko Yuen and 50% by Ms. Lan Yi, the spouse of Mr. Lau Tom Ko
Yuen.

Save as disclosed above, at Year End Date, none of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company nor their associates had or was deemed to have
any interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares or any of its
associated corporations as recorded in the register that required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Substantial Shareholders

At Year End Date, the following persons had interests and short positions in
the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

FERR

BARNBIIRIEZES NBEIKPIFEIGIKAETE
2B TIATRFLEBREKRMN
LEBROFHEEEERAR

Long positions in the Shares RN Z2HAR

Percentage of

issued share

Family* Corporate? Total capital of the

Interests Interests Interests Company

AR F

ERITRA

Name of Shareholder BREB HHR RikER AT R M ZEHIHL

Favor Hero Investments Favor Hero Investments — 266,890,840 266,890,840 22.03%
Limited Limited (Note)
(B &E)

Sun Matrix Limited Sun Matrix Limited — 266,890,840 266,890,840 22.03%
(Note)
(B 3E)

Lau Tom Ko Yuen* 2R 266,890,840 266,890,840 266,890,840 22.03%
(Note)
(B 3E)

Lan Yi B— 266,890,840 266,890,840 266,890,840 22.03%
(Note)
(B 3E)

Glory Avenue Limited Glory Avenue Limited — 266,890,840 266,890,840 22.03%
(Note)
(Bt 3)

Silvery Fortune R — 266,890,840 266,890,840 22.03%
Holdings Limited ﬁli NG (Note)
ik

Liu Min 281 — 266,890,840 266,890,840 22.03%
(Note)
(B %)

* Interests of spouse

# Interests beneficially held by the company itself or through companies controlled

by it

* Mr. Lau Tom Ko Yuen is a non-executive Director and Deputy Chairman of the

Company.
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Note:

Favor Hero Investments Limited was controlled as to 51% by Sun Matrix Limited and as
to 49% by Glory Avenue Limited. Sun Matrix Limited was controlled as to 50% by Mr.
Lau Tom Ko Yuen and 50% by Ms. Lan Yi, the spouse of Mr. Lau Tom Ko Yuen. Glory
Avenue Limited was wholly controlled by Silvery Fortune Holdings Limited which was
wholly controlled by Mr. Liu Min.

Save as disclosed above, at Year End Date, the Directors were not aware of
any other person who had an interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares as recorded in the register that required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and/or were directly or
indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of the share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other
members of the Group.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate and neither the Directors nor the chief executive, nor
any of their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the securities of the Company.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts of Significance

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance, to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
Year or at any time during the Year.
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Connected Transaction

Investment Management Agreement

2019 IM Agreement

On 18 December 2018, the Company entered into the 2019 IM Agreement
with Opus Capital for the appointment of Opus Capital as the Company’s
investment manager for the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December
2021.

Under the 2019 IM Agreement, Opus Capital is entitled to:

()  amanagement fee of a fixed amount of HK$600,000 per month (exclusive
of disbursements); and

(o)  discretionary bonus, if any and at such amount as the Board may at its
discretion determine, provided that no such bonus shall be payable
unless the Adjusted NAV as at the end of each Financial Year exceeds
the higher of: (i) the Net Asset Value for the year ended 31 December
2018; and (i) the Adjusted NAV of the most recent Financial Year after
year 2018 for which Opus Capital is paid a discretionary bonus and the
amount of such bonus shall not exceed 5% of such excess. Such
bonus, if any, shall be paid within 30 days after the issue of the audited
financial statements of the Group for the relevant Financial Year.

Information on Opus Capital

Opus Capital is a corporation licensed to carry out Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities under the SFO. It was incorporated in Hong
Kong in 2014 and is principally engaged in the business of provision of
investment services covering traditional and alternative investments via
various platforms.

Being the investment managers of the Company, Opus Capital are connected
person under Rule 14A.08 of the Listing Rules.

Further particulars of the above connected transaction is disclosed in note 25
to the consolidated financial statements and it has complied with the
requirements (including the disclosure requirements) of Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Save as disclosed above, the Group does not have other
connected transaction.
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The Board (including INEDs) confirmed that the 2019 IM Agreement are
entered into by the Group in the ordinary and usual course of business, on
normal commercial terms and such transaction is fair and reasonable, in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole and is conducted in accordance with
the terms of 2019 IM Agreement.

The Board confirmed that the auditor of the Company has issued to the
Board an unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transaction of the Group in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

Management Contracts

Save as the investment management agreement, the details of which are
disclosed under the connected transaction section of this report, no contracts
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The principal risks of the Group are highlighted as below:

1. The principal activity of the Group is highly affected by the volatility and
uncertainty of the worldwide economies which in turn affect the earning
power of business enterprises and the fluctuation in stock markets.
Hence, the Group is subject to the risk of decrease in the price and
value of its investments measured at FVTPL and FVOCI.

For investments measured at FVTPL, the financial impact on the
decrease in price of the investments is set out in note 30.2(iii) to the
consolidated financial statements.

For investments measured at FVOCI, the financial impact on the
decrease in fair value of the investments which in turn causes a
decrease in Net Asset Value is set out in note 30.5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

In order to mitigate the risk, the Group engages an experienced
investment director and investment manager to manage the diversified
investment portfolio of the Group. Besides, an investment committee
will also review the investment portfolio regularly.
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Key Performance Indicator

Being an investment company, the objective of the Group is to invest in
quality investments which in turn enhance the corporate value to the
Shareholders. For both short term and long term investments, a major
objective of the Group is to achieve a gain in asset value of the investments
which in turn increase the value of the Group. Hence, the Net Asset Value,
which shows the value of the Group, is considered as the key performance
indicator of the Group. The Net Asset Value is set out in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Environment Policies and Performance

The Group promotes environmental protection in daily business operations
including recycling consumables such as papers and reducing the energy
consumption by switching off idle lightings and appliances.

The Group will review its environmental protection practices from time to time
and will consider further eco-friendly measures and practices in the operation.

The environmental policies and performance of the Group are discussed in
more detail in the ESG Report of this annual report.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group pays attention to legal and regulatory requirements in designing its
policies and practices. Being listed in the Stock Exchange with businesses
mainly in Hong Kong and the PRC, the laws and regulations that have
significant impact on the Group include Listing Rules and those laws of Hong
Kong on securities, companies, taxation and labour. The Listing Rules, laws
on securities and companies govern the listing and legal status of the Group,
the trading of the Shares and equity investments on the Stock Exchange. The
law on taxation governs the taxability of the activities of the Group which in
turn affects the profit and loss attributable to the Shareholders. The law on
labour governs the employment of the Group which affects the remuneration
and retirement benefits payable to the employees of the Group. The Board is
not aware of any significant non-compliance of relevant laws and regulations.
Legal and compliance advisers will be engaged when necessary to ensure
the Group operates in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.
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Relationship with Stakeholders

The Group identified that the key stakeholders are employees of the Group
and the Shareholders.

Employees

The activities of the Group is heavily relied on the quality and loyalty of the
employees. Employees are regarded as the most valuable assets of the
Group. The Group is aimed to reward the staff with competitive remuneration
package and to provide staff with healthy and safety working environment.
Staff are encouraged to attend training courses and reimbursement will be
made for job-related training courses. The Group also promotes the employee
involvement in effective communications in designing its policies and
practices. The “social” section of the ESG Report has a more detalil
discussion.

Shareholders

The Shareholders support the Group’s activities by providing funding to the
Group. One of the goals of the Group is to enhance the corporate value to
the Shareholders. The Group strives to obtain the quality investments in order
to enhance the asset value and profitability of the Group which in turn the
wealth of the Shareholders. The Group maintains regular communication with
Shareholders by way of general meetings and announcements.

Customers and Suppliers

Due to the business nature, the Group has no major customer and supplier.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares
of the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Shares during the Year.
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Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
Laws, or the Company Act (1981) of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

Tax Relief and Exemption

Except for dividend income which is exempt from tax in Hong Kong, the
Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders by reason of holding the Shares.

Dividend Policy

The Board may declare dividend from time to time. The Board has absolute
discretion in the declaration of dividend after taking into account the following
factors:

Reserves of the Group available for distribution;
Performance of the Group;

Anticipation of future outlook of the economy;

Liquidity position and capital requirements of the Group; and
Any other matters considered appropriate by the Board.

SRR

Subsequent Events

There is no major event subsequent to Year End Date.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, there is sufficient
public float as required under the Listing Rules.
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Closure of the Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 24 May 2021 to
28 May 2021, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares
will be registered. In order to determine the identity of the shareholders who
are entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting, all duly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 21 May 2021.

Auditor

On 31 January 2020, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu tendered its resignation as
the auditor of the Company and Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited was
appointed as auditor of the Company by the Board on the same date to fill
the casual vacancy. Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited retires and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Cheng Hairong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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The Group is dedicated to maintaining a good credible framework of
corporate governance with a view to being transparent, open and
accountable to Shareholders.

The Company adopted all the code provisions in the CG Code as its own
code on corporate governance practices.

During the Year, the Company complied with the code provisions in the CG
Code except for the following deviations:

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separated and should not be performed by the
same individual. Being the only executive Director, Mr. Cheng Hairong, the
chairman of the Company, has assumed the role of chief executive officer of
the Company as well. The Board believes that in light of the nature and scale
of the Group’s business operations, it is in the interest of the Group for Mr.
Cheng Hairong to be the chairman and assume the role of chief executive
officer of the Company at the same time, as it helps to ensure consistent
leadership within the Group and enables more effective and efficient overall
strategic planning for the Group. The Board considers that the balance of
power and authority for the present arrangement will not be impaired and this
structure will enable the Company to make and implement decisions promptly
and effectively.

The Board

Composition

The Board currently consists of one executive Director, one non-executive
Director and three INEDs. Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard, an INED, has the
appropriate professional accounting experience and expertise. The names
and biographical details of each Director are set out on pages 15 to 17 of this
annual report.
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On 21 December 2017, the non-executive Directors have entered into
appointment letters with the Company for a term commencing from 21
December 2017 and continue until terminated by either party by not less than
three months prior written notice or any time agreed by both parties. They are
subject to the requirement that one-third of all the Directors shall retire from
office by rotation at each annual general meeting pursuant to the Bye-Laws of
the Company. There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship) among members of the Board.

During the Year, all Directors have attended seminars and provided reading
materials covering a wide range of topics including corporate governance and
updates on the Listing Rules and Companies Ordinance. All Directors have
provided record of seminars attendance. The Company will continue to
arrange and/or fund the training in accordance with the CG Code. The Board
has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the
business of the Group.

Function

The Board is responsible both for how the Company is managed and the
Company’s direction. Approval of the Board is required for the strategy of the
Group, major acquisition and disposal, major capital investment, dividend
policy, appointment and retirement of Directors, remuneration policy and
other major operational and financial matters. Day-to-day operations of the
Group are taken up by the Company’s management and the Company’s
investment manager.

The Board established schedule of matters specifically reserved to the Board
for its decision and those reserved for the management. The Board reviews
this schedule on a periodic basis to ensure that it remains appropriate to the
needs of the Company.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies, practices on
corporate governance, risk management, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, etc. The
Board held meetings from time to time whenever necessary.

The Board established procedures to enable Directors, upon reasonable

request, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense.
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TRERMSE

The Board held four regular board meetings at approximately quarterly interval
during the Year. Additional board meetings were held when necessary. Due
notice and board papers were given to all Directors prior to the meeting in
accordance with the Listing Rules and the CG Code.

EFEENAFERTOAEHEEEEH
MBFRT R -BIEFTEETHRCNER
RET- ARFRERBELTRAREE T
REBETERNAEBESEHEABARE
FEXfFe

The attendance records of the Directors for the Board and committee WMAFERNEEZTRNEE=TC @5 ZTECEH
meetings and the general meetings for the Year are as follows: EREAe 2 HBERSENT
No. of meetings attended/No. of meetings held
HESERAE BTEERE
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Board Committee Committee = Committee Meeting
EEXg EBRZEET FMEEE REEZEE BEXE
Directors 2=
Executive Director BITESR
Cheng Hairong (Chairman) G (F &) 8/8 N/A N/A 11 11
TiE A TiE A
Non-Executive Director EHTESE
Lau Tom Ko Yuen (Deputy Chairman) 2|5 R (8] % /&) 8/8 N/A 1/1 N/A 1/1
TERA N iE A
INEDs BYFHITES
Feng Nien Shu LN 8/8 4/4 11 11 11
Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard 2K R 8/8 4/4 11 N/A 11
i A
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa HEE 8/8 4/4 N/A 1/1 1/1
iE A
Total number of meetings R E LT
held during the Year R 8 4 1 1 1

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company adopted the Model Code as the codes of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors and by relevant employees of the
Company. All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiries by the
Company, that they fully complied with the Model Code and its code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions throughout the Year.
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Board Committees

To strengthen the functions of the Board and to enhance its expertise, there
are three board committees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee formed under the Board, with each
performing different functions.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen,
Richard, Mr. Feng Nien Shu and Ms. Wong Lai Kin, Elsa. The Audit
Committee is chaired by Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard.

The role and function of the Audit Committee include:

— to serve as a focal point for communication between other directors
and the auditor in respect of the duties relating to financial and other
reporting, internal controls, audits, and such other matters as the Board
may determine from time to time.

— to assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibility by providing an
independent review and supervision of financial reporting, by satisfying
themselves as to the effectiveness of the internal controls of the Group

and the adequacy of the audits.

—  to review the appointment of auditor on an annual basis including the
review of the audit scope and approval of the audit fees.

—  to review the annual and interim financial statements prior to their
approval by the Board, and recommend application of accounting

policies and changes to the financial reporting requirements.

—  to ensure continuing auditor objectivity and to safeguard independence
of the Company’s auditor.

Set out below is the summary of work done during the Year:

— to review the financial statements for Year 2019 and for the six months
ended 30 June 2020;

—  to review of the effectiveness of the internal control of the Company;
and

—  toreview the independence of auditor.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises two INEDs, namely Mr. Feng Nien
Shu and Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard, and the deputy chairman of the
Company, namely Mr. Lau Tom Ko Yuen. The Remuneration Committee is
chaired by Mr. Feng Nien Shu.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee include formulation of
the remuneration policy, review and recommending to the Board the annual
remuneration policy, and determination of the remuneration of the executive
Directors. The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model under the
CG Code to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive Director and senior management. The
Directors are remunerated with reference to their respective duties and
responsibility with the Company, the Company’s performance and current
market situation.

Set out below is the summary of work done during the Year:
—  toreview of the remuneration policy and package; and

—  to approve the remuneration of the executive Director and review the
remuneration of non-executive Directors.

Details of Directors’ emoluments for the Year are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director, namely Mr.
Cheng Hairong, and two INEDs, namely Mr. Feng Nien Shu and Ms. Wong
Lai Kin, Elsa. The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Cheng Hairong.

The role and function of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, formulating relevant procedures
for nomination of Directors, identifying qualified individuals to become
members of the Board and making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors.
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Directors or Shareholders, in accordance to the Bye-Laws of the Company,
may nominate candidate for appointment as Director. When assessing
candidates for directorship, the nomination committee will take into
consideration the skills, experience, education background, professional
knowledge, personal integrity, board diversity and potential contribution to the
Company of the proposed candidates. The proposed candidates should
meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules.
Potential candidates for INED should also meet the independence criteria set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Qualified candidates will then be
recommended to the Board for approval.

Set out below is the summary of work done during the Year:
—  toreview the structure, size and composition of Board; and

—  toreview the policy and procedures for nomination of Directors.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) which sets out
the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

Pursuant to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The Board will review
such objectives from time to time to ensure their appropriateness and the
progress made towards achieving those objectives. The Company will also
take into consideration its own specific needs from time to time in determining
the optimum composition of the Board.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledged that it is responsible for the Systems and reviewing
their effectiveness. The Systems are designed to manage rather that eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The management is responsible for the design, implementation and

monitoring of the Systems and the Board oversees the management in
performing its duties on an ongoing basis.
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Risk Management System

The Group adopted a risk management policy which sets out the structure of
the risk management, responsibility between Directors and management of
the Group, and the procedures on the risk management of the Group.

The Board identified risks in accordance with the business nature of the
Group. For those significant risks identified, the management will prepare
relevant policies and procedures for the daily operation of the Group.
Management will monitor the significant risk during the operation and report
to the Board on the effectiveness of the risk management system on a regular
basis. Weakness identified in the risk management system will be remediated
as soon as possible.

Internal Control System

Internal control systems were set up according to the operations of the Group
which cover the financial, operational and compliance aspects of the Group.
Relevant policies and procedures have been prepared for the daily operation
of the management. Internal audit consultant will review the effectiveness of
the internal control systems on rotational basis with each system to be
reviewed at least once in every three years. The internal audit consultant will
report the review results to the audit committee and Board twice a year.

Specific to the dissemination of inside information, the Group has an inside
information disclosure policy and procedures which set out procedures on
the dissemination of inside information. An inside information disclosure
committee has been set up to manage the dissemination of the inside
information. Whenever there is inside information, the inside information
disclosure committee will make recommendation to the Board for the
approval of disseminating the inside information. The internal audit consultant
will review the effectiveness of this internal control system and report to the
Board for remedial action if weakness were identified.

Internal Audit

An independent third party with extensive experience in reviewing internal
control system of listed companies has been engaged to perform the internal
audit function of the Group. The scope of internal audit will be determined at
the start of each year. As part of the ongoing review of the Systems, the
internal audit reviews the Systems, makes recommendation and reports to
the audit committee and the Board twice a year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Review and effectiveness of the Systems

The management provided confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of
the Systems which cover the Year on a quarterly basis. As mentioned above,
the internal audit consultant reviews the Systems and reports to the audit
committee and the Board twice a year.

In addition to the above, the Board in its annual review further considered
that: () there are no changes in the nature and extent of significant risks and
the Group’s ability to respond to changes in the business and external
environment; (i) the scope and quality of the ongoing monitoring of the
Systems by the management, internal audit consultant and external auditor
are adequate; (iii) the extent and frequency of communicating the monitoring
results to the Board are sufficient; (iv) there is no significant control failure or
weakness; and (v) the processes for financial reporting and Listing Rules
compliance are effective.

The Board, through its review on the regular confirmation from the
management and the internal audit function, concluded that the Systems
were effective and adequate. It also considered that the resources, staff
qualifications and experience of relevant staff were adequate and the training
programmes and budget provided were sufficient.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The fees paid/payable to the Company’s auditor, Messrs. Grant Thornton
Hong Kong Limited during the Year for auditing and non-auditing services is
analysed as below:
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RIEBEINER BIRERKERYOBER
RoMARENEIGERBEENERED

B BLED B €

RAFE AR BRIFZBERE M E AR A
ZRBMBRA(FE) GHMEBRER QA
EXf/EBRZERBIMAT

HK$
BT
Auditing for the Year REEF 2 ZE 870,000
Non-auditing: IR
Agreed-upon procedures on Preliminary Results REEMFEBERMHZ 15,000
Announcement for the Year EREF
Agreed-upon procedures on Continuing AEEHBEHEIIZHTRER 15,000
Connected Transactions for the Year
Review of interim financial information for the ERE £2020F6 308 IE~ B A HAM 2 160,000

6 months ended 30 June 2020
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Directors’ Responsibility for Preparing the
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities in preparing the
financial statements. The statement of the auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 43 to 48.

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company, the Shareholders, holding at the
date of deposit of the written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company,
may require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionists themselves may do so.

Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to
convene a general meeting following the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph. The written requisition should be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited at the head office of the Company, specifying the shareholders’
contact details and the resolution intended to be put forward at general
meeting.

For including a resolution to propose a person for election as a Director at
general meeting, Shareholders are requested to follow the Bye-Laws of the
Company. A written notice signed by a Shareholder (other than the person to
be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the general meeting of the
Company for which such notice is given of his intention to propose such
person for election and also a written notice signed by the person to be
proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the head
office of the Company provided that the minimum length of the period, during
which such notices are given, shall be at least seven days and that the period
for lodgment of such notices shall commence no earlier than the day after the
dispatch of the notice of the general meeting of the Company appointed for
such election and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting. The written notice must state that person’s biographical
details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules. The procedures for
Shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director is posted on the
Company’s website.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company’s registrar. Shareholders and the investment community may at
any time make a request for the Company’s information to the extent that
such information is publically available. Shareholders may also make enquiries
to the Board by writing to the company secretary at the Company’s head
office in Hong Kong at Suite 2711, Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Shareholder Communication and Investor
Relations

The objective of Shareholder communication is to provide Shareholders with
detailed information about the Company so that they can exercise their rights
as Shareholders in an informed manner.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure Shareholders
are kept well informed of key business imperatives. These include annual
general meeting, annual report, various notices, announcements and
circulars. Procedure for voting by poll has been read out by the chairman at
the general meeting.

At the general meetings held during the Year, a separate resolution was
proposed by the chairman in respect of each separate issue, including re-
election of the Directors and were voted by poll. The Company appointed the
share registrar of the Company to act as scrutineer of the poll to ensure that
votes cast are properly counted and recorded. The results of the poll were
announced in accordance with the Listing Rules.

During the Year, there had been no change in the Company‘s constitutional
documents.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R -HERERKRSE

Scope

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules.

The principal activities of the Group is investment activities in listed and
unlisted investments and other related financial assets. This report covers the
principal activities of the Company and its principal subsidiaries for the Year.
[t focuses on the aspects which have been identified as material to the
principal activities of the Group.

The environmental and social areas are addressed in this report and the
governance area is addressed in the corporate governance report as set out
on pages 28 to 37 of this annual report.

Overview

The approach and strategy of the Group for the environmental and social
areas is to raise the awareness of the employees in these areas which turn
into action during the daily operation of the Group with the objectives: (i) to
cause less harm to the environment and contribute to the environmental
friendly eco-system of the world; (i) to be a responsible employer; and (i) to
enhance the wealth of the stakeholders.

In order to achieve the above objectives, the Board aware the importance of
and acknowledge the responsibility for the strategy and reporting the

environmental and social areas of the Group.

Aspects which are considered material and in high priorities in the
environmental and social areas are highlighted as below.
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Environmental

The principal activities of the Group is investment activities in listed and
unlisted investments and other related financial assets. The use of resources
of the Group are mainly electricity and papers for office and reporting
purposes. The major emission of greenhouse gas is carbon dioxide through
the consumption of electricity and papers.

Emissions and use of resources

It is the policy of the Group to minimise the use of resources in order to
reduce the emission of carbon dioxide. The resources consumption and
emission are listed as below:

R -HERERKRS

Bis

AEBZTERH AN LT RIEFLTRE
REMHBEREENRELY  NEEH
ROER TERENRAEETNEM  RIER
TRMER - HEREIRARNBEP A
BMERERBIER A -

FHRERER

AEENBREARZERIERERABE =
SRR E - BIRBEAE L P REHT 40
™

Resources consumption/Carbon dioxide emission Unit

BRERE —GtBERE B

Resources consumption & E#E

Paper consumption tonnes 0.09
HERIBRE A

Carbon dioxide emission (indirect emissions) — & (k. #x HE & (R85 HE 70

Paper consumption 1COe 0.41

ARSROH R

Electricity was covered by the landlord without separate meter. Hence, the
resources consumption and carbon dioxide emission of electricity are not
available.

The water consumption of the Group is minimum and immaterial. In view of
the business nature, the Group is not aware of any significant generation of
hazardous waste.

In view of the principal activities of the Group, the Group is not aware of any

relevant laws and regulations in relation to environmental protection that have
significant impact on the Group.
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Impact on use of resources

In order to minimise the impact on environment, it is the aim of the Group to
minimise the use of resources in order to reduce the emission of carbon
dioxide. The Group has the following measures for achieving this aim:

1. switching off unnecessary lighting and electronic appliances (e.g.
computer) in order to reduce the electricity consumption;

2. using FSC certified paper for printing of interim and annual reports;

3. encouraging the employees to use electronic means for record keeping
in order to reduce the use of paper;

4, encouraging employees to use one-side printed recycle paper for
printing draft;

5. using air-conditioning with thermostats to maintain optimum
temperature for both occupants’ comfort and energy saving; and

6. assessing the compliance of environmental, social and governance
practice of investee when considering future investments.

Social

Employment

Employees is the most valuable asset to the Group. It is the policy of the
Group to employ person which is suitable to the position with equal
opportunity. Competitive remuneration package will be provided for the
employees. The Group will also comply with the relevant employment laws
and regulations.
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At Year End Date, the Group had 6 employees with ages ranging from 39 to
65 who have worked in the Group ranging from within 2 years to about 11
years. The distribution of gender of the employee of the Company is shown in
the table below:

R -HERERKRS

REHEB  AEBFEFHRN TI0E655H
EBEAAEBIENTF2EEZ1FLH  TX
HEA AR EEMER DM :

Number of Number of
male staff female staff Turnover rate

B z
As at IS EE®E EE®E K=
1 January 2020 2020F1 A1 H 4 2 N/A
i A
Year End Date F4H 4 2 0%

The laws on labour govern the employment of the Group which affect the
remuneration and retirement benefits payable to the employees of the Group.

The Group is not aware of any non-compliance with employment related laws
and regulations that have significant impact on the Group during the Year.

Health and safety

It is the policy of the Group to provide a healthy and safety working
environment to the employees. The Group will maintain its office premises
from time to time in order to provide a safety working place for the employees.
The Group also encourage employees to participate in recreational activities
organised by outside parties.

The laws on health and safety working environment governs the provision of a
healthy and safety working environment and compensation, if any, to the
employees of the Group.

The Group is not aware of any non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations in relation to health and safety working environment during the
Year that have significant impact on the Group.

The Group regularly promotes employees’ occupational safety and health
good practice at work in the aspects of lighting condition, use of office
equipment, office safety, computer workstation design and working posture
through briefing and various communication channels, resulting in better
working environment quality.
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Development and training

On-the-job training and continuous professional development are important
elements to enhance the industry knowledge of the employees of the Group.
The Group encourage employees to attend training courses (e.g. Listing
Rules and accountancy related seminars) and reimbursement will be made by
the Group for those job-related training courses. Besides, the Group will
purchase relevant reference materials for the employees’ self-study.

Labour standards
It is the policy of the Group to comply with the relevant laws and regulations

which prohibit the employment of child and forced labour.

The Group is not aware of any non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations in relation to preventing child and forced labour during the Year
that have significant impact on the Group.

Supply chain management and product responsibility
The supply chain contributes only to a small part of the operation of the

Group which the Group has no policy on this area.

The Group does not have products or services provided to customers and
hence the product responsibility is not applicable to the Group.

Anti-corruption

The Group has a whistleblowing policy for employees reporting suspicious
cases to the top management of the Group or the Directors.

The laws on anti-corruption ensure the integrity of Directors and employees of
the Group in conducting the business activities of the Group.

The Group is not aware of any non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations in relation to anti-corruption during the Year that have significant
impact on the Group.

Community investment

With base in Hong Kong and investments in Hong Kong and the PRC, the
Group had made donations to charitable organisations which focused on
charitable affairs for both Hong Kong and the PRC. In the future, the Group
will consider engaging charity or non-governmental organization for
volunteering and corporate social responsibility opportunities.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B % BUED 3R &

o Grant Thornton
H[E]
To members of

Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Prosperity
Investment Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 49 to 119, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfiled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matter that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
BERETSEE

FRREETEE

MR E EHRRIE AR B A B XA
RREAFEGAMBERERNETR/ER
MER ZEEEARAZHUMBFEREA
MBHEHRRMHAERSERE - M AZEE A
SHRETERRHBYNER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN ETNAERSE

Valuation of the unlisted equity investment in Rakarta Limited (“Rakarta”)

R Rakarta Limited ([ Rakarta_) #9 7€ £ 7 R 2~ 12 E 14 8

As disclosed in notes 4 and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s investment in Rakarta, which is an
investment holding company with its subsidiary principally
engaged in zinc and lead mining in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) is measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”). The fair value of investment
in Rakarta as at 31 December 2020 was approximately
HK$44,056,000, which was determined with reference to the
valuation performed by independent qualified valuer (“Valuer”)
with a fair value gain of approximately HK$14,350,000 adjusted
to the investment revaluation reserve during the year ended 31
December 2020. The estimated future cash flows of Rakarta
are highly dependent on the significant unobservable inputs and
assumptions used in deriving the future cash flows, in particular
the forecasted selling price, discount rate, forecasted
production volume and marketability discount.

WA E M B REMF4RMFI7TFAER - EEER
Rakarta (% —fEAR EZER A - BB AR EERNFHEA
REMBE(HBEDYEHEREAR) ORERQIFETA
Hih2EWm(HEAFEFAEMEZEEKE DT E - R
20204 12 A 31 H ' M Rakartaz & 2 & F 8 4 /344,056,000
BT DB EB LA ERGER(HER])ETZHE
BRET WERBZE2020F12A31H IEFE R FEKE
#)14,350,000 7% 7T, # 2 1% & = 1 # ## ° Rakarta 2 {fi 57 & 2K
ReRETHABEERARREREMNACEERTH
R ABBRBRE LERBAEE HEXx BAES
R miis i AT o

Management has reviewed the valuation of the investment in
Rakarta and considered the significant unobservable inputs and
assumptions of the valuation are appropriate.
EREEDEHNRakataz IRE T - XRB - FE2EE
PABRHABBERBREREE -

We identified the valuation of unlisted equity investment as a
key audit matter due to the significant estimation uncertainty in
determining the fair value of the investment in Rakarta.
REZEMBANIE ETRAREGMELS - HEAREFHE
R A 7 E P Rekarta ) 1% & 2 FE W k&) {4 58 T E 14
BEKX-

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of an unlisted equity
investment classified as financial asset at FVOCI included:
AZBMBEEE —EEARRATEFTAEMEZEKE 2
CPHEEMFLMRAREHRENREF B

0} challenging the reasonableness of the significant inputs
and assumptions including the forecasted selling price,
discount rate, forecasted production volume and
marketability discount adopted by the Valuer and
management of the Group and comparing them to
external available market data, such as historical trend in
price of ore, future outlook in mining industry in the PRC,
as well as the weighted average cost of capital of
comparable companies in the same industry;
EREZHABBERBEREGTSE  BEMERMR
EEBEREMRACRAEE MEXLRBAES
Kisgm BT & - 5 0E = H L Rl RN BB B HY T 35
Y NEEBEAEBRBE RRKPEHBENAR -
AR E —fTERA LR D A INAE TS E R

(ii) evaluating whether the estimated future cash flows and
annual production capacity of the subsidiary of Rakarta
are in line with the business plans formulated by the
management of Rakarta;

AT Rakarta# M B A RIAY A ET AR R 2R E R FELRE
Rakarta® 32 [& P il i ) £ 7551 8l 2 B — 5

(i)  assessing the competence, independence and objectivity
of the Valuer by assessing their qualification and valuation
experience in similar industry; and
BRI EEEMOESRERBEUTENGBAELR
NP EERGEMME N  BUMERESME : &

(iv)  reperforming sensitivity analysis by evaluating the potential
impact of reasonably possible changes in the key
assumptions.
FMHEZEREMEIE N g E BEEK M E
ETHRE DT -
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Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the 2020 annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters.
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We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Level 12

28 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

30 March 2021

Lam Yau Hing
Practising Certificate No.: P06622
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REBRERAMEERSR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512A831H IFFE

2020 2019 i%}

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 =]

g3 F#x THr B

i

s

Gross proceeds from operations KREFSREALE 6 19,383 11,752 ;_)ll

Revenue PN 6 2,260 3,313 ¥

Other gains and losses Hib Wz M EER 7 (42,772) (59,407) §5

Other income H e A 8 325 258 S
Administrative expenses THAX (14,947) (11,217)

Investment management expenses HEEERY 25 (7,200) (7,200)
Finance costs B 7 AR 9 (4,310) (4,243)

Loss before income tax MRETBBIATE B (66,644) (78,496)
Income tax expense P8 fif = 10 = -

Loss for the year attributable to owners of ZAXQTEEAEBGLEE

the Company BB 11 (66,644) (78,496)
Other comprehensive expense: Hth2EMAX:
Item that will not be reclassified RETEEN 7 HEZHEZN

subsequently to profit or loss: HA:
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets at fair BAFETAEMEEKE

value through other comprehensive income ZEMEERATEKSE

(E1#8) (20,382)

Total comprehensive expense fortheyear KA THEEAEEEE

attributable to owners of the Company 2HEBEXHARE (52,294) (98,878)
Loss per share BRER

— Basic and diluted (HK cents) — EAR R CBAD 14 (6.48)

The notes on pages 55 to 119 are an integral part of these consolidated HF55E 119B Z Wit A& M Bk 2 —
financial statements. oo
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RE B AR R

As at 31 December 2020 7202012 A31H

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-current assets

Plant and equipments

Right-of-use assets

Financial assets at fair value through other

EEREE

FRBEE
R E &R
EREEE

BATEFAREMEE KR

15
16

comprehensive income LERMEE 17
Financial assets at fair value through EBERATEFAERZ

profit or loss THEE 17
Current assets REEE
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABREZ

profit or loss TREE 17
Other receivables H b fE Y BR 1B 18
Cash held by securities brokers BEKEBFAEZE S 19
Bank balances and cash ROTEB LIRS 19
Current liabilities REBAE
Loan from a securities broker REBHELZER 20

Other payable and accruals
Lease liabilities

H i FE A AR IA M B FT IR IR
HE&R

21

Net current assets REBEEFE
Total assets less current liabilities EEZERARDER
50

2020
HK$’000
FEx

2019
HK$’000
TAT

619
490

29,706

21,222

52,037

106,100
6,240
2,280

26,448

141,068

49,884
1,500
330

51,714

89,354

141,391




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B KR &

As at 31 December 2020 2020912 831H

2020 2019 ﬂ
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 =]
Ff FHR FHET
i
=
Non-current liabilities ERBEME A
Lease liabilities HEAaE 21 176 _
_FH
Net assets EEFE 141,215 %f
S
Capital and reserves EXAREE
Share capital A% AR 22 30,283
Reserves & 110,932
Total equity BAHEE 141,215
Net Asset Value per Share (HK$) BEREEFEGER) 23 0.12
Cheng Hairong F &5 Lau Tom Ko Yuen &5 &
Director &% Director %

The notes on pages 55 to 119 are an integral part of these consolidated HF55ZF 1198 Z Wt A&F A M ik 2 —

hvd
=]

=S|

financial statements. b
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mMEEREHER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z=2020412 A31H [t E[E

Investment
Share Share revaluation Contributed Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve surplus losses equity
REEM
BAE BRGEE #E ERRR RitEBE REEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET T T FH T FHET FAET
At 1 January 2019 H2019F 1 A1H 30,283 192,895 (3,958) 290,081 (269,208) 240,093
Loss for the year FEERE — — — — (78,496)  (78,496)
Other comprehensive E fit 2 & B 55
expense
Fair value loss on BRAFEFTAEAM
financial assets at 2EKZEZ SR
FVOCI BEATEEE - - (20,382) - — (20,382
Total comprehensive HFEZHBAZAE
expense for the year — — (20,382) — (78,496) (98,878)
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12H31H
and 1 January 2020 2020518 1H 30,283 192,895 (24,340) 290,081 (847,704) 141,215
Loss for the year FEEE — — — — (66,644)  (66,644)
Other comprehensive B ftt 2 & 4 2%
income
Fair value gain on BAFEFTAEM
financial assets at EEKEZ S
FvOCl BERNTESRSE - - 14,350 - — 14,350
Total comprehensive € 2 HE F X 4258
expense for the year — — 14,350 — (66,644)  (52,294)
At 31 December 2020 X2020F12H31H 30,283 192,895 (9,990 290,081 (414,348) 88,921

FEENOR CMEBKAGRAM BRI Z —

e

The notes on pages 55 to 119 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements. &

=
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512A831H IFFE

2020 2019 %
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000 =]
g3 F#x THr B
i
R
Cash flow from operating activities KRETHMBRERE ;_)ll
Loss before income tax b PTiS B AT 18 (66,644) (78,496) _
Adjustments for: BATFIBELFE -
Depreciation of owned plant and equipments BEEMENEZEBITE 438 456 %‘)ﬁ
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREESENE 244 S|
Loss on written off of plant and equipments WHEmE REEERE - 12
Net exchange losses FIE N E R = 7
Interest expenses FEF X 9 4,310 4,243
Interest income PSRN (1) (258)
Dividend income fig B A (2,260) (3,313)
Net fair value loss of financial assets at BAFEFTABEZ SR
FVTPL BEEQNFEEER 42,772 59,330
Impairment loss on earnest money deposit PE S HEEIE 4,870 -
Operating loss before working capital changes 4@ &£ S HAI 2 KL R (16,188) (17,705)
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables H e Uk BR TE (38 ),k (3) 1,860
Increase/(decrease) in other payable and accruals H 4th & (< BR 18 K [E 51 BR 78
O ) 321 (10,500)
Net Proceeds/(Payment) from disposal/ HEBEEAFERA
purchases of financial assets at FVTPL BRZemMEEZE
RIB, (T3 SF 58 14,611 (7,979)
Cash used in operation KEFARE (1,259) (34,320)
Dividend received B WA B 2,948 2,625
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities ARETEETE (AT )
e FEH (31,695)
Cash flow from investing activities BRETBMEBHRERE
Interest received 2B 258
Payment for purchases of plant and equipments & B % & & 58 7 1 2 —
Cash received for settlement of earnest money 2 & 2 I & @R 10,000
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at HERAFTEFAEBZRZ
FVTPL — capital in nature CREEZFTISHIE
—BEARME 2
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities REEE (FrH),/ Brig
B FHE 10,260
53
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512831H IFFE

2020
Notes HK$’000
B 7E FExT
Cash flow from financing activities METBHMEBRERE
Proceed from loan from a securities broker REFBHFERLZERZ
Fris 538 4,290
Repayment of loan from a securities broker BEXRABLFKLZER (15,424)
Payments of lease liabilities THHEEAE (330)
Interest paid B E 9 (4,310)
Net cash used in financing activities FEG BB 2 FRE (15,774)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents B4R ZEBELIEHR
ZEop S (14,096)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

R1A1BZRE REE
RE&IAE

28,728

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

MR12A3MB 2B REE
HELEHE

Represented by
Bank balances and cash

Cash held by securities brokers

‘HRERRS

|
RITS
ELRRERAEZRE

The notes on pages 55 to 119 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

o4

F552 1198 Z BB A
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2019
HK$’000
TAT

14,954
(11,255)
(228)
(4,243)

(772)

(22,207)

50,935

28,728

26,448
2,280

28,728

MBwERZ—




1.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512A831H IFFE

General Information

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on the Main Board of Stock
Exchange. The addresses of its registered office and principal place of
business of the Company were Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and Suite 2711, Shui On Centre, 6-8
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and the principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 29.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 were approved for issue by the Board on 30 March 2021.

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs which collective term includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by
the HKICPA and the accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Listing Rules.

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated. The
adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the
Group’s financial statements, if any, are disclosed in note 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M WRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512831H IFFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for the financial assets at FVTPL
and financial assets at FVOCI which are measured at fair values.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions
are used in preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
Although these estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge and judgement of current events and actions, actual
results may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

When assessing whether the Group has power over the entity,
only substantive rights relating to the entity (held by the Group
and others) are considered.

The Group includes the income and expenses of a subsidiary in
the consolidated financial statements from the date it gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains and
losses on transactions between group companies are eliminated
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Where
unrealised losses on sales of intra-group asset are reversed on
consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested for impairment
from the Group’s perspective. Amounts reported in the financial
statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary
to ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted by
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512A831H IFFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.2

2.3

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, subsidiaries are
carried at cost less any impairment loss unless the subsidiary is
held for sale or included in a disposal group. Cost is adjusted to
reflect changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividends received and receivable at the reporting
date. All dividends whether received out of the investee’s pre or
post-acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s profit or
loss.

Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in HKS,
which is also the functional currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated entities,
foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the individual entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the reporting date,
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the reporting date retranslation of
monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated (i.e. only translated using the exchange rates
at the transaction date).

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual financial
statements of foreign operations, originally presented in a
currency different from the Group’s presentation currency, have
been converted into HK$. Assets and liabilities have been
translated into HK$ at the closing rates at the reporting date.
Income and expenses have been converted into the HK$ at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at the average
rates over the reporting period provided that the exchange rates
do not fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from this
procedure have been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in the translation reserve in equity.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
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2.4 Plant and equipments

Q3LIAM SONIATOH LNINLSIANI ALIHIHSOHd

Plant and equipments are initially recognised at acquisition cost,
including any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to
the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by the Group’s management.
They are subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is provided so as to write off the cost of assets less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the

BEREEDZZBRBRA (B
REEZZMBHERMREE
BEANASEERENRE A
EBENEERRERN)ER - ZF
B K& 1%1§:ZELAEX$H§%#%
ERZRFRERBEE) K

FEDREEMFTAEBFHN
BEREFRATFEELEREE  AM

jg straight-line method, at the following rates per annum: SHE P AR (E -
QO
-;-5 Leasehold improvement the shorter of the term of THEMEEE THEAS3F
g the lease or 3 years (A& E A%E)
S Motor vehicles 5 years = 5
Office equipment, furniture and fixtures PN ERME 3F
3 years R REE
Computer equipments 3 years ER R 3%

Estimates of residual value, depreciation methods and useful
lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting
date.

Gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance, are
charged to profit or loss during the financial period in which they
are incurred.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting 2. FEETFHEBEw o
Policies (Continued) =
%
2.5 Financial instruments 25 €T H ot
pxin
>
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the SREERSRHRBERAERK ‘D_)H
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the BRTEANBE T ERER - _
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets FMELN—RBRIREBEZEREE .
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular YRR S5BERRIETER « LA— =
N
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets MAXNEENIEIRBTHEETE g

that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial assets
at FVTPL) and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liabilities and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liabilities, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting
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2.5 Financial instruments (Continued)
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Financial assets

TREE

Classification and subsequent measurement of ERMEECEREBETE
financial assets
Debt investments EHERE

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

—  the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

—  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at FVOCI:

—  the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

—  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application/initial recognition of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither held for
trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in
a business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” applies.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting 2. FEGHBEMEw o
Policies (Continued) %‘;
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2.5 Financial instruments (Continued) 25 $@ T @) f
Financial assets (Continued) ERMEE® 1
Classification and subsequent measurement of ERMEEZOEREBETE

financial assets (Continued) (&) g

Debt investments (Continued) EHRE (&) N

A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if: WERMBESOUNTESE AloE S

— it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

— on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

— it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVOCI
as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost
and debt instruments/receivables subsequently measured at
FVOCI. Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.
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2.5 Financial instruments (Continued)
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Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of

ERMEE®
tREECENRBEE

financial assets (Continued) (#&)
Equity instruments designated as at FVOCI EERBEAFEGTAEME
HK#=ZRATA

Investments in equity instruments at FVOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve; and are not
subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss
will not be reclassified to profit or loss upon disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly represent a
recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are
included in the revenue in profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or FVOCI or designated as FVOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or loss
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other gains and losses” in
profit or loss.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting 2. FEGHBEMEw o
Policies (Continued) %‘;
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2.5 Financial instruments (Continued) 25 £@E T A um f
Financial assets (Continued) ERMEE® 1
Impairment of financial assets TREERE .

Loss allowance for ECL will be recognised on financial assets WBIEE S ERELRFEIREAT Q

which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including other WEZESHEE(BEEMEWEE S

receivables, bank balances and cash held by securities brokers). H IRTEBREBARKLEZEG 2R 8

The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12-months ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 month after the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

For all financial assets, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12-months ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which
case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512831H IFFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.5 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

— an actual or expected significant adverse change in
the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512A831H IFFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.5 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past
due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M WRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512831H IFFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.5 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(@  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b)  a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512A831H IFFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.5 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
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2.5 Financial instruments (Continued)
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Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include loan from a securities
broker, other payable and accruals and leases liabilities.

Financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are initially measured
at fair value, and, where applicable, adjusted for transaction
costs unless the Group designated a financial liability at FVTPL.

Subsequently, financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

All interest-related charges, if applicable, are reported in profit or
loss are included within finance costs.

Accounting policies of lease liabilities are set out in note 2.7.
Borrowings (include loan from a securities broker)

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group

has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting date.

68

THMAE
AEBZEBEROERAR

RiczE8F  EEMNKRERER
EEREERRE-

BEAEEEESRAERRF
Bt ABzm BRIZBEEREE
(HERBERINRIG IR R FER
B UBRHRATAFE(HE
A) -

ez cmBE(FEERERINFE
RAERF R EZBHENANGE -

PrAEEF S RBE(ER)
RESEPE2HRLFFAFBHRAE -

HERB G BREANMF27 -

BE(BEREIFLELZ
BN
BERNDEAFEBREES
ZRXGEAE)ER - fEEHRIAE
HAATR - FRERBEFNRR S
KA BECEEMERZZR
DREBRRNEZZREERNREER
=P RERR o

BREAKEEEEGRMTEINEAR
ZREEEEHEARKD T =
BA BRABESBRRBEE-




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512A831H IFFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting 2. FEGHBEMEw o

Policies (Continued) ?’;;3_:;

=

_ S

2.5 Financial instruments (Continued) 25 $@ T @) af

Financial liabilities (Continued) cA- =R ¢ ) 1

Other payable and accruals HittE(SIRIE R BT IRIE -

Other payable and accruals are recognised initially at their fair HiERMEREREEREEY F IR Q

value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the ENFEER HEEFERERFX S

effective interest method. EIRBE B ANET & - 8
Derecognition of financial assets and financial BEERecmEERESME

liabilities &

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost
and FVTPL, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the
Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is
transferred to accumulated losses.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M WRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512831H IFFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and securities brokers and short
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows presentation, cash and cash equivalents include cash held
by securities brokers and bank balances and cash.

Leases

Definition of a lease and the Group as a
lessee

At inception of a contract, the Group considers whether a
contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract,
or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an identified
asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for
consideration’. To apply this definition, the Group assesses
whether the contract meets three key evaluations which are
whether:

— the contract contains an identified asset, which is either
explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly specified by
being identified at the time the asset is made available to
the Group;

—  the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the identified asset
throughout the period of use, considering its rights within
the defined scope of the contract; and

— the Group has the right to direct the use of the identified
asset throughout the period of use. The Group assess
whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what
purpose’ the asset is used throughout the period of use.
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2.7 Leases (Continued) 2.7 HE @) af
Definition of a lease and the Group as a HEESRAE®EES 2

lessee (Continued) A A @) —

For contracts that contains a lease component and one or more MEEEEEK LD & — | g

additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates FEANEESFHEAKID 2 S

the consideration in the contract to each lease and non-lease ABHME  NEBEZBREAE B S

component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.

Measurement and recognition of leases as
alessee

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-
use asset and a lease liability on the consolidated statement of
financial position. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost,
which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability,
any initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of any
costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset at the end of
the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease
commencement date (net of any lease incentives received).

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line
basis from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the
end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the
lease term unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership at the end of the lease term. The Group also assesses
the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicator exists.

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease
liability at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.7 Leases (Continued) 2.7 HE @)
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Measurement and recognition of leases as
a lessee (Continued)

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability
are made up of fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable payments
based on an index or rate, and amounts expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain
to be exercised by the Group and payment of penalties for
terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
the option to terminate.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for
lease payments made and increased for interest cost on the
lease liability. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or
lease modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed
payments.

When the lease is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is
reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-
use asset is already reduced to zero.

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases using
the practical expedients. Instead of recognising a right-of-use
asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these leases
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Short-term leases are leases with a
lease term of 12 month or less.

On the consolidated statement of financial position, right-of-use
assets have been presented in separate line item.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not
wholly within the control of the Group, are also disclosed as
contingent liability unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefit is remote.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. The amount of share
capital recognised is determined using the nominal value and any
related transaction costs are deducted from the share premium.

2.10 Revenue recognition

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment have been established.

2.11 Government Grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions. Government
grants are deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that the grants
are intended to compensate.

/3

2. FTEESHEEME @

2.8

2.9

210 L A FERR
B

BERIAREE

WAEEEBESMFAEAERE
RIECAERKMERE)  BREZRE
AREEBEBEMAING  REER
e A S (At - RIRER R -
MREEZHHEAEEER BES
NAEERERATH ZREAK:.

MEBRBONERERLENL
REBARRE 2 REME -

ERESEREEEHKEN=
M RERKBEAREN EHEE
B - BRIERZACE N 2 i 2 AT Bt
B BABHETARERIA
BE-AREAEZEE(AFESR
BREE-BXZELAKTE T
EERHIARKREHZ2EERT
AARE)NAREREIAEE
BRIFEBHEENDE R 2 AN
1BAE - BIVERI R ©

iR A<

ERBRTRESERD DHABRAE
SRDKRMBEEEE - M EMERH
ZRSGRAB R EEP IR -

BRE 2 KB AR B E WER A K
Z PR M B T IARER ©

211 BT 8 Bh

AT 8 BE TR & 32 4R A8 A% WK EX 47 BA
A EARE B &S A WS &G
RERE RN TET AR - BUF#HE
R A B R M EKARF NS
AT IAELE RN BT R -

ENANES [kt

0202 M4




Q3LIAM SONIATOH LNINLSIANI ALIHIHSOHd

020¢ Hodey fenuuy

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512831H IFFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.11 Government Grants (Continued)

Government grants relating to income is presented in gross
under “Other income” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

2.12 Impairment of non-financial assets

Plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and the Company’s
investment in subsidiaries are subject to impairment testing. They
are tested for impairment whenever there are indications that the
asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value, reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal, and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of time
value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purpose of assessing impairment, where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent from those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result, some assets are tested
individually for impairment and some are tested at the cash-
generating unit level.

Impairment losses is charged pro rata to the assets in the cash
generating unit, except that the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value less cost of disposal, or
value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount and only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised. A reversal of such
impairment is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises unless that asset is carried at revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for the revalued
amount.

74

2. FTEESHEEME @

211 BT 18 B o|)

B2 U A AR PR O XA A B AR R X AR
cREREMEZERERIE MK
AJTEF -

212FEWMEERE

BEEEE ERABEENRAR
ARMBARMNKEARRRE
A WETSRBREEZREE
AU E - R ZEE 1T RE R

2\ °

HMEBEDEERBEBBHEA
WEEE =8 BHERNEE
RR/FAXZ AR OSBERRRT B
R 2 A B R B A B E A
BEZBSEFE FHEREE
- EEFARRR SR ERA B AT
REFHEZHBRE RAFTRER
MREFEMEHEREFREELE
MEERARR G -

SLAFERENS  HEEEEZR
ERMALFEAREBINREME
EMELZRERA  AJKRESHE
BAUBVELRESRAZRNE
ERAR(MRESELEM)EE -
At - B0 EE S @B ETTRER
AomME-—HARREELEEMR
BETTRIA

BREEREES TS HREER
H {8 Bl A B R A 2 fE A
BEMAEE) I BHEBRIR
EhEZRCELENCEESR
R -

ERAREEEEAKESE 2
FAHBRENEFEELEREER
HEEREETSEBMTHER
BB R B E 2 R EE (R
E#E) AHRECRERE
EEXRREFABREAN RIFAME
ENREHEIER MREAMR
EfesBZABEFBRERER
ZHEEIRGIR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512A831H IFFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting 2. FESHHEHBEw o
Policies (Continued) %‘;

|

_ B

2.13 Employee benefits 213 EERF at
Retirement benefits scheme EAKREBRETE a

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through defined FEEATHIFEMESIRMEE _
contribution plans. RiE F o g

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit RNEBIREREMEAESTEIE g

plan under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for all of its employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ salaries.

Payments to the MPF Scheme are recognised as expense when
employees have rendered service entiting them to the
contributions.

The Group’s obligations under MPF Scheme are limited to the
fixed percentage contributions payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave
and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Long service payments

Certain of the Group’s employees have completed the required
number of years of service to the Group in order to be eligible for
the entitlement of long service payments under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance (“Employment Ordinance”) in the event of
the termination of their employment under the circumstances
specified in the Employment Ordinance. A provision is recognised
in respect of the probable future long service payments expected
to be made. The provision is based on the best estimate of the
probable future payments which have been earned by the
employees from their service to the Group to the end of the
reporting period.

75

DI & 17 — A R E PR KRR A E
g HRAEAERZERE S
glz2EEE - HFNEREEHE
BoEHE -

mEE A BE RN EERHERS
MERSARES HREERAR
FX -

AEERBRESASIZ2ECE
PRI FE A B FE B 3 L AR

EHEEREA

BEEERZAFR ENEEXM
FREERIANE AKESREE
HERLEEERHFEZRBME
EZFRZEFAREFELRE -

FRFARERE(DBERRER)
REEXDEBERAK T S H#ER
NG

RER®K S

AEEETREEEKAAEE
RBREFH EMRBEFEE
Bl ([ME R 561 ) & BRI EE
RPIFFAE R THRE LRBET=Z
BERORGE BERBHEER
BE SN AR R B IR TS & B RE AR o 3
BHERERERER/ASRERSEER
& HI R P Bk ER R 2R AT BE 32 BROR
ZERAEMEHEL -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M WRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512831H IFFE

2. FTEESHEEME @

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

214 EE R A
BERAREER -

215 SR 2Bt RE

2.14 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

2.15 Accounting for income tax
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Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to the
current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the reporting
date. They are calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense in profit
or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on temporary
differences at the reporting date between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
tax losses available to be carried forward as well as other unused
tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit,
including existing taxable temporary differences, will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period the liability is settled or the
asset realised, provided they are enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting 2. FEGHBEMEw o
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2.15 Accounting for income tax (Continued) 215 TSR 28T EE W ¥
Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised in EERELAEXAGEEHNER %

profit or loss, or in other comprehensive income or directly in FRER M EEMmeEmEmKESsE
equity if they relate to items that are charged or credited to other ERERHNKSETAZEE RSB —
comprehensive income or directly in equity. ARNEMEERSIEERNERS 5
SR #
N
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in net B EEERIBHBEBAGR §

if, and only if,

(@  the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@  the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b)  the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(i) different taxable entities which intend either to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
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simultaneously, in each future period in which EBEXREE) NVEE

significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets HEELNEBHRIBEEE

are expected to be settled or recovered. MEEXRREIREE
REBEaEZTEER
HEEE -

2.16 Related parties

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a
party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and if that person,

216 BAE /5
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2. FEEFHEBE @

2.16 Related parties (continued) 216 BAE 7 (@)
(o)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions (b) M E THEMEH - BlZ
applies: EREASEAFHE:
()  the entity and the Group are members of the same 0] ZEREAEEBR—

(i)

group.

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member

(i)

SEZKBRF -

@mm

—HERBSS —

ZBMERAHAED

of a group of which the other entity is a member). (KB BEBRAERE
> o
3 ETKEBRRZH &R
5 ARABLEIRER
3 A]) o
i
S
3 @iy  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the (i) EEREAEEHAR-—

(iv)

same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the vy EBERBAEAEBEREASE
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity BEEHREBECERMES

(V)

related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vi)

) 28 3% 3L 2 BB AR B R

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (vii) R @0 A BT E B A
over the entity or is a member of the key BEREEATE B
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent ZEBRB(HZEBEE 2B
of the entity). RENZEEEREX

g o

(viii)

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family

(viil

\
v
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ATEEBETEEINERR
XZANLTEEZBBREXRE -

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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3. Adoption of New and Amended 3. AT RLIEITESE ¥
HKFRSs B %5 R &5 % Al o
=
3.1 Amended HKFRSs that are effective for 31 R2020F1A1EHE B 2 =
annual periods beginning on 1 January 2020 FTEHPEERZLETE %
8 B 7% ¥R & 2 A
In the Year, the Group has applied for the first time the following REF AEEBDHRER T A .
amended HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, which are relevant to EhAetmAoeBMmENEFE P
the Group’s operations and effective for the Group’s consolidated EA AR A S ER2020541 A1 §

financial statements for the annual period beginning on 1 January
2020:

Amendments to HKFRS 3  Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

The adoption of these amended HKFRSs had no material impact
on how the results and financial position for the current and prior
periods have been prepared and presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M{F j-igngﬁ:%E EttAHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512831H IFFE

3. Adoption of New and Amended

HKFRSs (Continued)

3.2 Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, certain new and amended HKFRSs have been
published but are not yet effective, and have not been adopted

early by the Group.

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,

HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS
16

Accounting Guideline 5 (Revised)

Insurance Contracts and related amendments*
Reference to the Conceptual Framework®

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions'

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current*

Property, Plant and Equipment —
before Intended Use®

Proceeds

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract®

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards
2018-2020°

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 22

Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combination®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

5 Effective date not yet determined

6 Effective for business combinations/common control combination

for which the acquisition date/combination date is or on after the
beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January

2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512A831H IFFE

3. Adoption of New and Amended

HKFRSs (Continued)

3.2 Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

The Directors anticipate that all of the new and amended
HKFRSs will be adopted in the Group’s accounting policy for the
first period beginning on or after the effective date of the
procurement. The above new and amended HKFRSs are not
expected to have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and

Judgements

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 2, the Directors are required to make various
judgements estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair value measurement of unlisted equity
investment

At Year End Date, the fair value of this investment was amounted to
HK$44,056,000 (2019: HK$29,706,000) with a fair value gain of
HK$14,350,000 (2019: fair value loss of HK$20,382,000) adjusted to
investment revaluation reserve. Judgement and estimation are required
in establishing the relevant valuation techniques and the relevant inputs
thereof. Changes in estimations relating to these factors could affect
the reported fair value of the unlisted equity investment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB HRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512831H IFFE

ITVAAY

4,

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (continued)

Recoverability of earnest money deposit paid
for a potential investment

In determining whether the earnest money deposit paid for a potential
investment is impaired requires an estimation of the ECL. In assessing
the ECL, the management performed credit analysis on the background
and creditworthiness of the potential vendor to which the earnest
money has been paid as disclosed in note 30.4. The provision of ECL
is sensitive to changes in estimates, including the probability of default
and loss given default. At Year End Date, the carrying amount of the
earmnest money deposit is HK$NIl (2019: HK$4,870,000) due to the full
amount had been impaired during the Year.

Income taxes

At Year End Date, no deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation
to the tax losses of HK$418,093,000 (2019: HK$360,911,000) due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability of the
deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits
will be available in the future. In cases where the actual future taxable
profits generated are more than expected, or there are changes in facts
and circumstances which result in revisions of future taxable profits
estimation, a material recognition of deferred tax asset may arise, which
would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such
recognition takes place.

Segment Information

HKFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of
internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the CODM, being the managing director of the Company,
in order to allocate resources and to assess performance. The CODM
reviews the Group’s investment portfolio and profit or loss as a whole,
which is determined in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policies, for performance assessment, accordingly no operating
segment information is presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512A831H IFFE

5. Segment Information (continued) 5.

Geographic information

The Group’s revenue is generated from, and non-current assets (other
than financial instruments) are located in, Hong Kong.

Dividend income from the Group’s investments contributing over 10%
of the Group’s total revenue during the year ended 31 December 2020
and 2019 are as follows:

THEER @

ih 3B & B

AEEZWARAES MEFRBE
E(BSRT AN ERES -

HE2020F K2019F 12 A3 H ILFE -
MAREFBERA10% A 72 REBIRE
BB U AR -

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHER FHT
Investee A X ENFA 3,111
Investee B EXKRENTB N/A 71~ F
6. Gross Proceeds from Operation/ 6. BEMEBXEBHALE X
Revenue A

The following table shows the gross proceeds from disposal of financial
assets at FVTPL which are revenue in nature for tax purposes and the
revenue of the Group which represents the dividend income:

TRETHERAVFEFABGEZER
BEGIBRBME RRELE) 2AEX
FEBARAER 2R - FBREWA :

Gross proceeds from disposal of financial
assets at FVTPL which are revenue in

nature for tax purposes Fri5 R IE 42 %8
Dividend income f& B A

HERAFEFABRZZERE
EGIREME RREMEE) 2

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$’000
FER THT
8,439

3,313

11,752

Revenue represents dividend income of HK$2,260,000 (2019:
HK$3,313,000).

383

W A 5 B& B Uk A 2,260,000/ 7t (2019
£ 1 3,313,0007 7T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512831H IFFE

s} . T 15

2 7. Other Gains and Losses 7. Hhlm R EE

@

%

3 2020 2019

Z HK$’000 HK$'000

g FHT F#IT

2

S Fair value changes of financial assets at RATEFABREZEREER

g FVTPL FES

e — capital in nature for tax purpose —RMEmE AEANE (6,753) (3,838)

= — revenue in nature for tax purpose —BEEmE BRSNS (36,019) (55,492)

g

_ (42,772) (59,330)

> Net exchange losses FIE N B 1R = (77)

=}

I~

%9 (42,772) (59,407)

-

S The fair value changes of financial assets at FVTPL comprised of net EATEFAEZZeREERN TE
realised losses for disposal of financial assets at FVTPL of BEHAIEHERATESTABZZSE
HK$16,526,000 (2019: HK$1,858,000) and unrealised losses of B & E 2 B &3 % E 816,526,000 T
HK$26,246,000 (2019: HK$57,472,000) (note 24). (20194F : 1,858,0007% 7T ) & 7 B I &5 18

26,246,000 7T (20194 : 57,472,000
7T) (FE24) ©
8. Other Income 8. Hfttg A
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Bank interest income AT A B A 258
Government subsidies (Note) IR 4 B (B 3E) -
258
Note: Government subsidies for the Year represents subsidies from the Pt 5E 7N BRAT A B R OR B BB BUR R 1R
government of Hong Kong under the Employment Support Scheme. R FE T EIR 4E 2 # R -
84




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9. Finance Costs

mE S WAk M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512A831H IFFE

9. BFFE A

Interest on loan from a securities broker
Interest expenses of lease liabilities

KEBFRBRLZEFRIE
MERBZNERAX

10. Income Tax Expense

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made since there was no

assessable profit for both years.

Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting loss at applicable

tax rates:

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH& T
4,201

42

4,243

10. AR X

B B AN 5% [ 0 8] 4F /R 19 R EE A PR R TR

wm A A B BB FIS AR L B

ZHER

HERMEAEZHARXEGER

Loss before income tax

BrATIS R AIE 1R

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of
16.5% (2019: 16.5%)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purpose

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

AR i BT 1S B AR R 16.5%
(20194 : 16.5%) 1 & 2 Fi 18
MBEENTENRES 2

BB E
MH B TR HBAZ
BT E

AERZHEBBZBRBEE

Income tax expense

IR

At Year End Date, the Group has unused tax losses of HK$418,093,000
(2019: HK$360,911,000) available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The tax losses are subject to the agreement from
the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department and may be carried

forward indefinitely.

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT T T
(66,644) (78,496)
(10,996) (12,952)
1,992 601
(431) (602)
9,435 12,953

REGH ARB 2R AHBEEE
418,093,000 % 7T (2019 £ : 360,911,000 &
TC) AI PR 35 R SR R o B 7 R 2 Al
METARA RIEEERETCHEE
E-HEABEAGEARBERAEAR

ER AR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M WRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512831H IFFE

11. Loss for the Year M1.FEEE
Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging: FEBED KR T &IE :
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THT

Q3LIAM SONIATOH LNINLSIANI ALIHIHSOHd

(a) Staff costs (including directors’ (a) EIREK(BEESHFH)
remuneration)
Salaries, wages and other benefits He ITENMEMETR 3,992
Discretionary bonus BB T8 4T 286
Contributions to defined contribution RER|FRIKTE 2
z retirement plans HaR 199
c
5
&
§ 4,477
S
B
(b) Other items (b) Etb1EE
Depreciation, included in administrative THRFAXER T ZHE:
expenses:
— Owned assets —BEEE 456
— Right-of-use assets —EAEEE 244
Auditors’ remuneration ZHMHE 850
Impairment loss on earnest money HELREERE
deposit -
Loss on written off of plant and MR R R 2 BB
equipments 12
Short term lease with lease term less HEALR12E R 2 R EBEE
than 12 months 600
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512A831H IFFE

8/

12. Directors’ Emoluments 12.EEME i
i
i
Emoluments paid or payable to the Directors were as follows: BENEREEZ2HME0T : %
ot
p=ii)
Retirement 5
i
benefit
Salaries and scheme o
Fees allowances contributions Total Q
3B K8 FI 5t & §
we HeRkER [ #ct =
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAB T FAT F&T FB T
Year ended 31 December & %2020 £
2020 12A31HILEE
Name of Director EEHR
Executive Director and HITEFFEF
managing director: AEAETE -
Mr. Cheng Hairong gL E
Non-executive Director: IFHITESE
Mr. Lau Tom Ko Yuen =N
INEDs: BIHBITESE :
Mr. Feng Nien Shu LML E
Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard & JK &% 45 4
Ms. Wong Lai Kin, Elsa EBEBZT
Year ended 31 December &, = 20194
2019 12A31BLFE
Name of Director EEHA
Executive Director and HITEFEHFRESE
managing director: AR
Mr. Cheng Hairong B KL - - - -
Non-executive Director: HHITESE -
Mr. Lau Tom Ko Yuen AsREE - — - -
INEDs: BUHHITESE
Mr. Feng Nien Shu Lok E 80 — - 80
Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard & Jk R % & 80 — — 80
Ms. Wong Lai Kin, Elsa HERL L 80 - — 80
240 - - 240




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M WRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512831H IFFE

3 12. Directors’ Emoluments (continued) 12.EEMEmw
(9]
o
m
% The executive Director’s emolument shown above was for his service EXFRZRTESHe AERESE
Z as director and in connection with the management of the affairs of the EREEBEARARAEBEEEZHME -
Q Company and the Group.
=
? The non-executive Director’'s and INEDs’ emoluments shown above X RZIERTEERBIIERITE
© were for their services as directors. EHeRBEEEEST 2 M -
=}
=z
&
& No emolument were paid by the Group to any Directors as an PREFEARN AEBTERFHES
= inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for SAENE  UEABMBH RN MBRER
S loss of office during both years. B RENSKE AR R 2 f(E
> There was no arrangements under which a director waived or agreed HEENEENZMBEEEANARNEXR
2 to waive any remuneration during both years. ERETAMEOLHE -
g
= = = - = = = 4+
2 13. Five Highest Paid Individuals’ 1. EEERFMALHE
° Emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, none AREBREZGaTMALTHHESZS
(2019: none) was a Director. The emoluments of these 5 (2019: 5) (20194 + ) - Z5% (2019F : 5% ) A
individuals were as follows: TZBEmT
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Salaries and other benefits HekEMBEFR 3,464
Discretionary bonus BB TE 4T 286
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme 3R ¢k 18 FI| 5 21 £t 2k 187
3,937

838




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512A831H IFFE

13. Five Highest Paid Individuals’ BLEBESFMALEHFE B
Emoluments (continued) () =
-
Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEZHMEN T T EHE : E,f
p=ii)
B30
l
2020 2019
No. of No. of o
employee employee Q
EEAH EB A ]
8
Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 A8 #8 1,000,000 7% 7T 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7% 7T & 1,500,000 % 7T -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7t & 2,000,000 7% 7T 1
No emoluments have been paid to the five highest paid individuals as RAEFE AEBTERNAEZES T
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation AL ABS - AEA MBS R INE
for loss of office during both years. REER 2 Bk ERRER 2 wE -
14. Loss Per Share 14. 8RE1E
The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to the owners of the ARAREEAEBLESREREIE TR
Company is based on the following data: TEIEETE -
2020 2019
Loss attributable to owners of the Company KA &l # A AEGEE (T35 T)
(HK$’000) (66,644) (78,496)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares st E &R EIEB 2 D& TE @R
in issue for the purposes of loss per share hnkE 8 (FR%)
(in thousands) 1,211,320 1,211,320
The diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share as there BRZMEFETEBETEIN BT
was no potential dilutive ordinary share outstanding during both years. BETRRKR WERBEEEHEAGRER

B EARR -

39




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M WRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z=2020412 A31H [t E[E

g 15. Plant and Equipments 15. M E R R B

o

3 Office

Z equipment,

Q Leasehold Motor furniture Computer

% improvements vehicles and fixtures equipments Total

5 WAERME -

8 HEWELE RE BEMREE BERRE Azt

g HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

@ FHET FHET THET THET FHET

=

m

= Cost %

— At 1 January 2019 R2019461A1H 1,096 2,918 185 294 4,493

> Written off g (1,096) — (181) (138) (1,415)

>

s

-%.5 At 31 December 2019 and #20194 12 A31H I

,f; 1 January 2020 2020F1 A1H — 2,918 4 156 3,078

S| Additions RE - - - 12 12
Written off i 88 - — - (11) (1)
At 31 December 2020 R2020F12A31H — 2,918 4 157 3,079
Accumulated 2 FE

depreciation
At 1 January 2019 M2019%1A1H 1,096 1,863 179 268 3,406
Charge for the year FE M - 437 1 18 456
Written off i (1,096) - (176) (131) (1,403)
At 31 December 2019 and 7201912 A31 B &
1 January 2020 20201 A1H — 2,300 4 155 2,459
Charge for the year FE Mk - 436 - 2 438
Written off i 85 - - - (1) (1)
At 31 December 2020 #2020612831H — 2,736 4 146 2,886
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2020  A2020%12H 31 H - 182 - 11 193
At 31 December 2019 201912 A31H — 618 — 1 619
90




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 ;22020412 A31H [FE[E

16. Right-Of-Use Assets 16.FAEEE o
358
HK$000
= ar
FHET =
B30
l
Cost 52N _
At 1 January 2019 20191 A1H — T
Additions NE 734 %;3
S
At 31 December 2019, 1 January 2020 and  }A20195F12H31H - 202051818 K&
31 December 2020 2020412831 H 734
Accumulated depreciation i E
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1 A1 H —
Charge for the year FEMK 244
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 2019412 A31H &2020F1 A1H 244
Charge for the year FE M 327
At 31 December 2020 A 2020F12HA31H 571
Carrying value REE
At 31 December 2020 A2020%F12831H 163
At 31 December 2019 2019412 A31H 490
Included in the carrying value is the right-of-use assets related to office FHERERNAMESBNERAESR
premises, which has been depreciated over the lease period of 27 E BR27TEAMEBIZEEGRE TUNE -

months on a straight line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512831H IFFE

17. Financial Assets at FVOCI/FVTPL 17.

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAT

Unlisted equity investment designated at BEABEAFEFAEM2EK

FVOCI (Note) B2 EMRAKRE (M5 29,706
Non-current portion I % B & 4
Listed equity investments classified as DEABEATEFABmZ SR
financial assets at FVTPL which is capital BEZ FTERAKSE
in nature for tax purpose EpBiBms REARME 21,222
Current portion ‘Iﬁ B & 5
Listed equity investments classified as DEREATEFABE ISR
financial assets at FVTPL which is revenue ~ & &2 FARAIEE - 5t H
in nature for tax purpose BmE AREHEE 106,100
Note: The investment is not held for trading, instead, it is held for long-term M : ZREALTHEES MeRBERSR
strategic purposes. The Directors have elected to designate this RHE - ZEFCEEETZRAREZER
investment in equity investments at FVOCI as they believe that recognising BREATFTEFAAEMEZERE AR
short-term fluctuations in this investment’s fair value in profit and loss BERR REETERAZREZATF
would not be consistent with the Group’s strategy of holding this BEEHERASERAFAZIEE
investment for long-term purposes and realising its performance potential WREREBERHEBERE ZRIETAE
in the long run. —e
At Year End Date, financial assets at FVTPL of HK$57,898,000 (2019: REFER BRFEAABBRZEME
HK$106,768,000) were pledged to a securities broker for the margin 757,898,000 7 7t (2019 4 : 106,768,000
loan of HK$38,750,000 (2019: HK$49,884,000) granted to the Group BL)BERT - RABFELCARS
(note 20). S8BT AEE 2 F R E 538,750,000

7 (2019 £F : 49,884,000 i 7t.) (Pt £20) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512A831H IFFE

Other Receivables

18.

H fth FE W AR 1H

Earnest money deposit for a potential
investment project
Less: Impairment loss

O E R

BEHEKREHBZHESR

Dividend receivable JiE W AR B,
Other prepayments and deposits HmBEMFEREZS
Other receivables H fth fE U AR TE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH& T
4,870 4,870
(4,870) —
4,870

688

677

5

6,240

Bank Balances and Cash/Cash Held by
Securities Brokers

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from 0% to
0.02% (2019: 0% to 0.02%) per annum. The cash held by securities
brokers carry interest at market rates which range from 0.01% to 0.25%
(2019: 0.01% to 0.25%) per annum.

Loan from a Securities Broker

At Year End Date, the margin loan from a securities broker was secured
by a portfolio of financial assets at FVTPL held under the margin
account, with a total market value of approximately HK$57,898,000
(2019: HK$106,768,000). The Group’s margin loan has no determined
maturity date and is subject to interest specified from time to time by
the securities broker. The maximum amount of the margin loan granted
by the securities broker depends on the market value of the assets
pledged with the securities broker. The effective interest rate for the
Year is 9.65% (2019: 9.65%) per annum. The finance cost for the Year
is set out in note 9.
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20.

RITEBRBES & F5
BE

Y

i
&l
i
at
N

IRITRE SR IZ T I5F F RN F0% Z0.02%
(2019 : 0% £0.02%) 7T B ° BH L4
BAEZREZMHSFMNENF001%=E
0.25% (20194F : 0.01% £ 0.25%) &t & °

RERZELZER

REHEB REBHFLLEZHAEERD
HABREREFETNRAEZRAFE AR
mZEBMEEZHEAER  BTEY
757,898,000 7T (20194F : 106,768,000
BIL) AEBZARER L EETF
A WEEEFELTREE X
AR BHEREBRTZARERZES
CHEIPARNERTELRR L 2EEZT
HEE  AFEZERF X KI65%
(20194 : 9.65%) ° 2N 4F 5 B %5 B AR & 7]
RHFE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512831H IFFE

21. Lease Liabilities

21. HEBE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH& T
Total minimum lease payments: =EBEFKBTE:
Due within one year —F R E|H 360
Due after one year but within two years —FREBERWERNEH 180
540
Future finance charges on lease liabilities HEBBZARKVBER (34)
Present value of lease liabilities HMEAaERE 506
Present value of minimum lease payments: &K & 3R E :
Due within one year —FRNE 330
Due after one year but within two years —FERERWE NI 176
506
Less: Portion due within one year included & : B8 E&E+F —FRNEH 2
under current liabilities i (330)
Portion due after one year included under EnaER —FEIBM LS
non-current liabilities 176
22. Share Capital 22, Bx 7K
Number of Nominal
shares value
;i &vig 4= H{E
HK$’000
FHT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each BREE0.B BT ZLER
Authorised: EE
At 31 December 2019 and 2020 20194 K 2020F 12 A31 H 4,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREHE
At 31 December 2019 and 2020 FR20194F K 2020412 A31 H 1,211,320,200 30,283
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 ;22020412 A31H [FE[E

23. Net Asset Value Per Share 23.BREEZFE o
335

s

Net Asset Value per share is computed based on the net assets value BREEFREDNERFEEB2EEFE

of HK$88,921,000 (2019: HK$141,215,000) and 1,211,320,200 (2019: 88,921,000/ 7T (20194 : 141,215,000/ ﬂ
1,211,320,200) issued and fully paid Shares at the Year End Date. o) MBETRESE 2 1,211,320,200 4% gll
(20194 : 1,211,320,200 8% ) B {5 5t & » "

a

24. Particulars of Investments Held by the 24. A& BEEZREHE 3
Group 2

AEERFAEBRBRAEZREAFBRIE L
MARABEANEHBEWT

Particulars of investments held by the Group at Year End Date
disclosed pursuant to Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules are as follows:

Proportion of Fair values of Dividend Net assets
Place of investee’s listed/unlisted income during attributable to Principal activities/places of
Name Incorporation capital owned Cost  equity securities theyear  the investment operation
FERES EH/k LR
REERZ REESZ FRAZRE REEBENEE
A% TR AL 2 BALLH RE AY¥E KA EFE ITEL/LEsY
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET BEETL BEET
Listed equity
securities
ITHRARS
PYI Corporation Limited Bermuda 1.05% 17.81 325 - 42.00 Infrastructure investment and
(498.HK) the operation of bulk cargo
ports and logistics facilties/
PRC
REEEERRAR BEE HRRENRATHEAD
(498.HK) KRk E/ P E
*ITC Properties Group  Bermuda 2.39% 71.23 17.66 1.15 90.50 Property development and
Ltd (199.HK) investment, hotel and
leisure operations, securities
trading and loan financing
services/Hong Kong,
Macau, Canada, United
Kingdom and the PRC
EEBESEER AEE NMEERRRE EERE
A F)(199.HK) REBEE EHEER
BEXRERY/BH R
F-MEX  EERPE
* Greater Bay Area Bermuda 4.94% 36.13 8.19 0.98 99.98  Operation of hotel business/
Dynamic Growth Hong Kong and the PRC
Holding Limited
(1189.HK)
REERRENEE BRE EEEBEE/FERTE
RERRA
(1189.HK)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M WRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z=2020412 A31H [t E[E

U FAEBRFEE2REFT

24. Particulars of Investments Held by the

e
2
% Grou P (Continued) (4&)
=
Z Proportion of Fair values of Dividend Net assets
Q Place of investee’s listed/unlisted income during attributable to Principal activities/places of
% Name Incorporation capital owned Cost  equity securities theyear  the investment operation
2 FREEES EH/EL
z REEEZ RA#SZ FAZRE REEBEEE
5 A% 2t 1 3 3t B &4 RE AVE KA EFE XEEE/LeEsty
g HK$ million HK$ million HKS million HK$ million
& BBATL BEBATL BEATL BEBATL
=
m
= China Development ~ Cayman Islands 0.79% 28.44 414 - 14.62  Investments in money market
_ Bank International securities and equity and
. Investment Limited debt related securities in
3 (1062.HK) listed and unlisted entities
5 on a global basis/HK and
é? the PRC
S AREARREBRL HEES REZH 2 EEMHEFMU
S 7(1062.HK) REMRFELTERZK
3 RREBREES/BE
RAE
* Shaw Brothers Cayman lslands 4.39% 37.07 8.85 - (1.27) Investments in films, drama
Holdings Ltd and non-drama productions
(953.HK) and artiste and event
management/Hong Kong
and the PRC
MEAFERER HEHE 5% BERFBERER
7 E)(953.HK) EURBAREDER/
BEERE
*TOM Group Ltd Cayman Islands 0.98% 58.39 26.86 - (9.01) Chinese-language media
(2383.HK) conglomerate with diverse
business interests in
e-Commerce, mobile
Internet, publishing, outdoor
media, television and
entertainment/Hong Kong,
the PRC and Taiwan
TOMEEERRAR HEHS RXEREE REFH
(2383.HK) 2 %HoBAE IR

YTN S PrT
BETlEHIER/E
B HERAN




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 ;22020412 A31H [FE[E

24. Particulars of Investments Heldby the 24. AEBER A2 REFE §
Group (Continued) () =]
B
Proportion of Fair values of Dividend Net assets %
Place of investee’s listed/unlisted  income during attributable to Principal activities/places of ]
Name Incorporation capital owned Cost  equity securities theyear  the investment operation el
FEEES EH/ kLT —
REEEZ BRAESZ FAZRE REEBEEE
£ 2t 1 3 3t B &4 RE AVE KA EFE XEEE/LeEsty Q
HK$ million HK$ million HKS million HK$ million S
BBATL BEBATL BEATL BEBATL 3
Success Universe Bermuda 0.08% 0.27 0.15 - 0.26 Engaged in the travel-related,
Group Limited ottery and property
(0487.HK) investment businesses/
Hong Kong, Macau,
Canada
EERBERAR AEE REREED VERRDE
(0487 HK) REEB/BE RMR
mex
China Construction PRC 0.00002% 0.47 0.35 0.02 0.71 Banking and financial services/
Bank Corporation Global operation
(939.HK)
rERRETRG  FE BONEBRE/ 2HEE
R AF(©939.HK)
HSBC Holdings Plc England 0.00002% 0.36 0.15 - 0.28 Banking and financial services/
(0005.HK) Global operation
ELRRERAR  EEH RONGRERYE/ 2REL
(0005.HK)
Unlisted equity
securities
FLETRE
EH
* Rakarta Limited The BVI 14.70% 54.05 44.06 - (2.307) Investments in a subsidiary
principally engaged in zinc
and lead mining/the PRC
* Rakarta Limited KERLES RERTERFERBER
HERE/
* Significant Investments held as at 31 December 2020 * R2020F 12 A1 HF B ZERRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M WRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z=2020412 A31H [t E[E

24. Particulars of Investments Held bythe 24 KX&EEFEEBE 2R EFF
Group (Continued) (4)

Particulars of investments held by the Group at 31 December 2019
disclosed pursuant to Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules are as follows:

KEBR2019F12 A1 HIF A 2R EF
BRE TR EANZHEDT

Proportion of Fair values of Dividend Net assets
Place of investee’s listed/unlisted income during attributable to Principal activities/places of
Name Incorporation capital owned Cost  equity securities theyear  the investment operation
FERES EH/ kLT
REERZ BRAES 2 FRZRE REEAEM
%8 R AL 3t B BALA RE AYE KA BERE IDER/SEny
HK$ milion HK$ milion HK$ milion HK$ milion
BEET BEET BEAT BEET
Listed equity
securities
THRAES
PYI Corporation Limited Bermuda 1.05% 17.81 5.23 - 47.05 Infrastructure investment and
(498.HK) the operation bulk cargo
ports and logistics facilities/
PRC
REZEERAR BEE HRBRENRARHEAD
(498 HK) Riikiee g/ v
[TC Properties Group ~ Bermuda 2.37% 71.23 27.53 311 109.33  Property development and
Ltd (199.HK) investment, hotel and
leisure operations, securities
trading and loan financing
services/Hong Kong,
Macau, Canada, United
Kingdom and the PRC
ERUEEEER BRE MEBRREE BERE
A F)(199.HK) HEBK2E ZHEER
BRAERE/ B R
Fimex EERFHR
Greater Bay Area Bermuda 4.94% 35.13 11.31 - 103.68 Operation of hotel business/
Dynamic Growth Hong Kong and the PRC
Holding Limited
(formally “Rosedale
Hotel Holdings
Limited”) (1189.HK)
XEEEZHELR ARE BELBEE/EERTE
BRAA (R
BEERRERD
A1) (1189.HK)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z202012 4318 [FFE

24, Particulars of Investments Held by the

0. FAEBEEEZ2REHFTE

Group (Continued) (4&)
Proportion of Fair values of Dividend Net assets
Place of investee’s listed/unlisted income during attributable to Principal activities/places of
Name Incorporation capital owned Cost  equity securities theyear  the investment operation
FERES LBk LT
RERRZ RAES 2 ERZRE  REEBER
A% R ALt BEALLH RE AYE A BERE IDEE/SEny
HK$ milion HK$ milion HK$ milion HK$ milion
BEBETL BEBATL BEAETL BBATL
China Development ~ Cayman Islands 0.85% 30.42 327 - 156.23  Investments in money market
Bank International securities and equity and
Investment Limited debt related securities in
(1062.HK) listed and unlisted entities
on a global basis/HK and
the PRC
BRERREERD FREHE REZHR 2 EEMHEFMN
7(1062.HK) REMRFELTERE R
EREREEES /R
LA E
Shaw Brothers Cayman Islands 4.88% 41.24 12.27 - 23.43  Investments in fims, drama
Holdings Ltd and non-drama
(953.HK) productions and artiste
and event management/
Hong Kong and the PRC
BEAFERERD FAEHS B BISRIFBRBIER
71(953.HK) ENREARGEDER/
BERS
TOM Group Ltd Cayman Islands 1.14% 67.70 56.87 - 2.02 Chinese-language media
(2383.HK) conglomerate with diverse
business interests in
e-Commerce, mobile
Internet, publishing,
outdoor media, television
and entertainment/Hong
Kong, the PRC and
Taiwan
TOMEEER HEHS RYREEE NEFH
2 7 (2383 HK) g BHEHE . LR
FHMEE BRRIRERE
BEultibiEs/E
BomERAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z=2020412 A31H [t E[E

e = S
3 24. gartlculars of Investments Heldbythe 24. X &E B HE 2 REFE
% FOUP (Continued) (4®)
3
Z Proportion of Fair values of Dividend Net assets
Q Place of investee’s listed/unlisted income during attributable to Principal activities/places of
% Name Incorporation capital owned Cost  equity securities theyear  the investment operation
5 FEEES LBk LT
S RERRZ RAES 2 ERZRE  REEBER
= A% 1R B 3 4t B BEALLH RE AVE KA BETE EER/LEnd
5 HK$ million HK$ million HKS million HK$ million
= ABAT ABAT BT ABAT
=
= China Strategic Hong Kong 0.77% 10.14 4.56 - 25.79 Engages in the business of
— Holdings Ltd investment in securities,
> (235.HK) trading of metal minerals,
2 metal, coke products and
% electronic components,
3 money lending as well as
s securities brokerage/Hong
§ Kong, the PRC, Europe
and South America
HEREBEERDE B NEEFRELH &8
(235.HK) BNES 2BE5
BEEREHRETE
HE5 FEREFE
BEH/EE RE-
BUM R A =M
China Construction ~ PRC 0.00002% 047 0.40 0.02 0.62 Banking and financial
Bank Corporation services/Global operation
(939.HK)
FHREERRITR HE RN MRS, 2B
RERAE Bg
(939.HK)
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24, Particulars of Investments Held bythe 24. KAEBiZ 5 2R EHE 2
Group (Continued) (4&) %
B
Proportion of Fair values of Dividend Net assets %
Place of investee’s listed/unlisted income during attributable to Principal activities/places of o
Name Incorporation capital owned Cost  equity securities theyear  the investment operation A
FERES LBk LT —
RERRZ RAES 2 ERZRE  REEBER o
A% R ALt BEALLH RE AYE KA BERE IDEE/SEny E-
HK$ million HK$ million HKS million HK$ million §
BEBETL BEBATL BEAETL BBATL <
Get Nice Holdings ~ Cayman Islands 0.21% 492 450 0.15 13.67  Money lending, property
Limited (0064.HK) development and holding
and investment in financial
instruments, real estate
agency and the provision
of financial services,
including securities dealing
and broking, futures and
options broking, securities
margin financing and
corporate finance
services/Hong Kong and
United Kingdom
EHERERAE HEHES HE NEERRER
(0064.HK) URBRERERIA

WERE : RERER
% BREFEER
BERE BELME
BERHG EFRER

BERGERERE/
EBRE

Unlisted equity

securities

FLmRARS

Rakarta Limited The BVI 14.70% 54.05 29.71 - (2.17) Investments in a subsidiary
principally engaged in zinc
and lead mining/the PRC

Rakarta Limited EBRLHES BRERTEREZHRMARK

ol YNV
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24. Particulars of Investments Held by the
Group (Continued)

An analysis of realised and unrealised losses is as follows:

U KAEEEE2REFE

(%)

31 December 2020
Hong Kong listed equity investments
Unlisted equity investment

2020%12A31H
BB LEWRARE
FEMBAEE

31 December 2019

2019 12H31H

Realised losses Cumulative
for equity unrealised losses for
investments equity investments
disposed held by the Group as
during the year at the reporting date
REEHHAREERE
FRHEZREAER BZRARENRE
ENESRRER REFEE
HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET T T

(Note (i) (Note (iii))

(B = i) (B 3K (i)

(16,526) (151,231)
- (9,990)

(16,526)

(161,221)

Hong Kong listed equity investment & F TR AR E (1,858) (124,985)
Unlisted equity investment FEETRAKE - (24,340)
(1,858) (149,325)

Notes:

(i

(i)

For listed equity investments, net assets attributable to the investment are
based on latest published financial information of the relevant investment.
For unlisted equity investment, net assets attributable to investments are
based on latest financial statements or management accounts of the
investment.

Realised losses during the year represent the difference between the
proceeds on disposal and the initial acquisition cost of the respective
investment in financial assets. Among the realised loss of HK$16,526,000
(2019: HK$1,858,000), HK$16,526,000 (2019: HK$1,801,000) and
HKS$NIl (2019: HK$57,000) represent the realised loss on the disposal of
financial assets at FVTPL which are revenue and capital in nature
respectively for tax purposes.

Unrealised losses represent the difference between fair value and cost of
the respective investment in financial assets.
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0 BRETRAREMS  KEBRBEGEE
EFEDARBERERE WEZ &N
HBEERBKE - BLIF ETRAKRE M
FORERBEEEEFREIDNERER
BREMFBRRAEEBRDKE -

(ii) FAEEBEEFEELEREEREE
REZHBRBEERENBBER AR Z
ZfH. RN B # I A 1816,526,0007% 7T
(20194 : 1,858,000/ t.) F * 16,526,000
770 (20194 : 1,801,000/8 7T) R ZEH 7T
(20194F : 57,000 7T) B ER A FE
FATABHZERMEEZEEREE A
REBEME 2R ARERERNEE -

iy KREREBEBEEFHECMEEREZR
FEHERBEZEZLRE-




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512A831H IFFE

25. Related Party/Connected Transactions 25.B@E 5 EE X 5

During both years, the Group entered into the following related party/

connected transactions.

BERS -

MEFER  AEBFTZATEELS

2020 2019
Name Relationship Nature of transaction HK$’000 HK$’000
=E RS REMEE FHET FET
Opus Capital Investment manager Investment management 7,200
of the Company fees expense
BlE &R RATZREKE REEREHRASL

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key management

FR EFRAKETEREEBEMMK

personnel of the Group during the year was as follows: BZHMmT :
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
Directors’ remuneration E=Me 240
Short-term employee benefits REEE®RFA 3,051
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RRAE A ET B 152
3,443

The emoluments of key management (excluding Directors) were within

the following bands:

TEEEE(TRRES)ZHMENTFT

Not exceeding HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

P& E -
2020 2019
No. of No. of
employee employee
EEAH =W
T~ 381,000,000/ 7T 2

1,000,001 7% 7T £ 1,500,000 % 7T
1,500,001 7% 7T & 2,000,000 % 7T

26. Non-Cash Transactions

During the Year 2019, the Group has received listed equity investments
amounted to HK$10,130,000 for the settlement of earnest money

deposit.

26. ¥RERH

R2019FE - AEBERAEHE S I
3| W A & 10,130,000 7T ©
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27. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising 27. ?"’é ETHELEEBEZY

from Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

TRALASERELZHELABZE
B BERASKIREBH -BELY
MEXABEREIBRAKREGARS
MERNBERABERDMSEREREZ
RERBIAKRASRE -

Loan from a
Lease securities
liabilities broker Total
REFEH
HEEE QLEZEX st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
At 1 January 2020 R2020F 1 A1H 49,884 50,390
Cash flows RER=E
— Proceeds from loan from a securities —REBEKLZER
broker Z 8 3IA 4,290 4,290
— Repayment of loan from a securities —BEERBBAHLLZ
broker B3 (15,424) (15,424)
— Loan interest expense paid —BENERFERY (4,280) (4,280)
— Capital element of lease rentals paid — BNl zERETS = (330)
— Interest element of lease rentals paid — BNl zMEES = (30)
Non-cash: FHES
— Interest expenses —HMEFRX 4,310
At 31 December 2020 R2020%12 A31H 38,926
At 1 January 2019 R20194 1 A1H — 46,185 46,185
Cash flows ReEnE
— Proceeds from loan from a securities —KREBERKLZER
broker 2B RIA - 14,954 14,954
— Repayment of loan from a securities —EEREBHLLZ
broker =& - (7,054) (7,054)
— Loan interest expense paid —BERNERFERX (4,201) (4,201)
— Capital element of lease rentals paid —BENHEEZ2EARI Y (228) - (228)
— Interest element of lease rentals paid ~ — B & 2 8 2 &5 (42) - (42)
Non-cash: FHRE
— Capital element upon enter of new —FINHFALEZEAR
leases i 734 - 734
— Interest expenses —FEMX 42 - 42
At 31 December 2019 72019412 531 A 506 49,884 50,390
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28. Statement of Financial Position of the

Company

28. & 2 B 2 B B AR R &R

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-current asset
Investments in subsidiaries
Amounts due from a subsidiary

EERAE

FRBEE
RBERAZRE
JE W — B 8 & B 5K0R

Current assets REBEE

Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U BT B R B FR A
Other receivables H fth fE W BR TR
Bank balances and cash RITEHB LIRS
Current liabilities REEE

Amount due to subsidiaries FETHT B A B F0E

Other payable and accruals

HoAh A BRIA e B 5T AR IR

Net current assets REBEEFEE

Net assets EEFHE

Capital and reserves EXRFEE

Share capital [N

Reserves (Note (i) & (M REG)
105

2020
HK$°000

FTER

2019
HK$’000
FTHET

18,741

18,742

119,935
5,258
132

125,325

12,824
1,142

13,966

111,359

130,101

30,283
99,818

130,101
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28. KRB 2 M EMRN TR @

28. Statement of Financial Position of the

Company (continued)

5
T

(@]

19}

0

m

s}

3 . .

= Notes (i): B E() -

=

rm

4@

% Share Contributed Accumulated

= premium surplus losses Total
S % 17 % & BB RitEE st
5 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
5 FHET FHET FHET FHET
»

C

<

r:‘n At 1 January 2019 R20199F1 A1H 192,895 123,754 (174,354) 142,295
o Loss for the year FEER - - (42,477) (42,477)
= At 31 December 2019 H2019F 12 A31 H 192,895 123,754 (216,831) 99,818
§ Loss for the year FEEE — — (42,368) (42,368)
o

S

S At 31 December 2020 7A2020%F12A31H 192,895 123,754 (259,199) 57,450
S

N

o

Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between
the nominal value of the Shares issued by the Company for the
acquisition of GRIH and the consolidated net assets value of GRIH at
the time it was acquired by the Company pursuant to a group
reorganisation in 2001.

Under the Companies Act (1981) of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus is distributable to the Shareholders, provided that
the Company is, after the payment of dividends out of the contributed
surplus, able to pay its liabilities as they become due; or the realisable
value of the Company’s assets would thereby not be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities, issued share capital and reserves.

The Company has no reserves available for distribution to Shareholders
at Year End Date (2019: Nil).

106

ARAw e B#AGESRERRIE2001
FEEEARARRWER AR R REK
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512A831H IFFE

29. Particulars of Principal Subsidiariesof 29. XA QAT T EKEB AR =2
the Company A

B
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December ARAFEEBEHE A T R20204F K20194F
2020 and 2019 are as follows: 12A31B 2= BOT
Place of Issued and fully paid share Attributable equity
Name of subsidiary incorporation capital/paid-in capital interest Principal activity
BRTRBERE
BB A R BB AR BEHRA BEEAER TEEK
2020 2019

Directly held by the Company:

HALAREERSH:
Accufocus Investments Limited The BVI 100 shares of USD1 each 100% Investment holding
REBRELHS 100REREGEIETZR REER
n
Carson Capital Resources Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% Investment holding
REREXERAA BB 1L B KREERK
Indirectly held by the Company:
HALRBERSE:
GRIH Hong Kong 899,900,000 ordinary shares 100% Investment holding
SREIR BE 899,900,000 % & i % REER
Genius Choice Investments Limited The BVI 1 share of USD1 each 100% Investment holding
RERAHS 1REBREEIZETZ KREERK
& 15
Easy Ace Investments Limited The BVI 1 share of USD1 each 100% Investment holding
HBRAHS 1TREREEIZETL REER
[ 4n)
Prosperity Management Services Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 100% Provision of corporate
Limited management
services within the
Group
REEERBARAR EE 2% & @k REEEARREDR
XEBRS
Rich Concept Investments Limited The BVI 1 share of USD1 each 100% Investment holding
RERAHS 1REBREEIZETZ KREERK
& 15
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M WRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512831H IFFE

29. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of

30

the Company (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

At the end of both report periods, the Company has other subsidiaries
that are not material to the Group. The majority of the subsidiaries are
intermediate holding companies or inactive during both years.

Subsidiaries of the Company are operated in Hong Kong.

Financial Risk Management and Fair
Value Measurements

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity investments,
other receivables, cash held by securities brokers, bank balances and
cash, loan from a securities broker, lease liabilities and other payable
and accruals. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),
liquidity risk and credit risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512A831H IFFE

30. Financial Risk Management and Fair
Value Measurements (continued)

.FERBEERAFE
ol B (@)
VALRMEERAEES

A MBAN KA Z K (E &
THeRmEERSRBEBERIA

30.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position relate to the following categories of financial

assets and financial liabilities: g :
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET F& T
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost RBERAHEZCREE
— Other receivables — HAb U BR I8 5,563
— Cash held by securities brokers —BHELLEHFEZR® 2,280
— Bank balances and cash —RTTEHBR LIRS 26,448
34,291
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFAEBZZ
EREE 69,939 127,322
Financial assets at FVOCI BEAFEFAEMBEZERZEZ
EHMEE 44,056 29,706
113,995 157,028
Financial liabilities cRAE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost RBHEKATHEZSRAE
— Loan from a securities broker —RABELELZER 49,884
— Other payable and accruals — H e BR 18 X FE AT BR I8 1,500
— Lease liabilities —HEBR 506
51,890
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M WRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512831H IFFE

30. Financial Risk Management and Fair
Value Measurements (continued)

30.2 Market risk

(i

(ii)

Currency risk

Certain assets are denominated in USD and RMB which
are foreign currencies of the relevant group entities. No
sensitivity analysis is presented due to the Directors believe
the foreign exchange exposure is insignificant.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arises.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank balances, cash held by
securities brokers and loan from a securities broker. The
Directors consider the Group’s exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk is not significant as interest-bearing bank
balances and cash held by securities brokers and loan
from a securities broker are within short maturity periods.

The management monitors the Group’s fair value interest
rate exposure on an ongoing basis and will consider
hedging significant fair value interest rate risk should the
need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512A831H IFFE

30. Financial Risk Management and Fair V. BEABREERAFE Z
Value Measurements (continued) 5T = @) =

=

30.2 Market risk (Continued) 30.2 T 5 B B ) f

(i) Other price risk (iii) EEERE i

Other price risk relates to the risk that the fair values or HumERERENRSHITA _

future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate ZAFTEFIAKRBEELERER Q

because of changes in market prices (other than changes B &b (F] 2= G 4 FE PE = & S

in interest rates and foreign exchange rates). The Group is EBRN TR ZER - KE S

exposed to change in market prices in respect of its
investments in listed equity classified as financial assets at
FVTPL and unlisted financial assets classified at FVOCI as
disclosed in note 17 and note 24 respectively. To manage
its market price risk arising from these investments, the
Group diversifies its portfolio.

Sensitivity analyses

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the reporting
date.

If the prices of the respective financial assets at FVTPL had
been 10% (2019: 10%) higher/lower, pre-tax loss for the
year would decrease/increase by HK$6,994,000 (2019:
pre-tax loss for the year would decrease/increase by
HK$12,732,000) for the Group as a result of the changes
in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL.

Sensitivity analysis of financial asset at FVOCI is disclosed
in note 30.5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512831H IFFE

3 30. Financial Risk Managementand Fair 30. i K EKREER AL E

% Value Measurements (continued) ATEw@

s

g 30.3 Liquidity risk 03 RBE = M

rm

% Liquidity risk refers to the risk in which the Group will not be able mBESRBRIEAEEELET

g to meet its obligations with its financial liabilities. The Group is HemaBRB2RR KN&E

5 exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of other payable AEEHEMWENEBEESERE

) and accruals and its financing obligations, and also in respect of EmEsBITREAEREREER

é its cash flow management. MAZRBE SRR -

=

@ The following table shows the Group’s remaining contractual TRBATAEBRSHAEBEZHAT
maturity for its financial liabilities which are included in the AEHHEHIALEEERDES

B maturity analysis provided internally to the key management ERmAEARNLREBZEEAES IR

jg personnel for the purpose of managing liquidity risk. 2 BB AT) ©

S

-%-5 Within one Over one year Total

g year or but within contractual  Carrying

3 on demand two year cash flows amount

—FAN BE-F A&HR%
RER (EREMERN REBAE REE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000  HK$000
TET TET TAET TAET

As at 31 December 2020 42020512 H31H
Loan from a securities broker 3 8 & F & 42 2

Other payable and accruals = JiE -t BR 18 %
FEEHBRTE
Lease liabilities HEAE

As at 31 December 2019 2019412 A31H
Loan from a securities broker 3 @ &5 4840

BEX 49,884 — 49,884 49,884
Other payable and accruals  H {th & {5 BRIE 2
FEETERIA 1,500 - 1,500 1,500
Lease liabilities HEBE 360 180 540 506
51,744 180 51,924 51,890
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30. Financial Risk Management and Fair  30. i B EREE R A FEH ¥
Value Measurements (continued) il B o) =
|

- - ﬁ

30.4 Credit risk 30.4 fZ E A b& af
pxin

The Group’s exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial AEBREFHAEBTEMTM ;_)II

loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the SAEERBYKEBRAEREZ
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the EERER  ERNGEAVBMRIER .
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the FMEZHECERSREEZE &
consolidated statement of financial position. HEEFE - g

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk on recognised
financial assets is limited to their carrying amounts as disclosed
in note 30.1.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model on
each individual debtor. In this regard, the Directors consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group
uses past and forward-looking information to assess whether
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. The
management would make periodic collective and individual
assessment on the recoverability based on historical settlement
records and past experience. The financial assets of the Group
which are subject to ECL assessment comprises other
receivables, cash held by securities brokers and bank balances
and cash. The management of the Group reviewed and assessed
the impairment for each financial asset individually under the 12
months ECL model. Except for the earnest money under other
receivables as below, there is no significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition and the risk of default is low and the
counterparties have the capacity to meet their contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term. No loss allowance was
recognised as the amount was immaterial.
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30. Financial Risk Management and Fair

.FERBEERAFE
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At Year End Date, the Group has a concentration of credit risk in
respect of cash held by securities brokers as 45% (2019: 84%)
of the total balance was held by one (2019: one) securities
broker. The Directors consider that such concentration of credit
risk would not result in any default exposure to the Group
because the counterparty is a broker with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has a concentration of credit risk in respect of bank
balances which are held by three banks. Bank balances were
placed at financial institutions that have sound credit rating. The
risk of default is low and the Group considers the credit risk to be
insignificant.

Other receivables

The earnest money deposit was placed with the potential vendor,
an individual and independent third party to the Group. At Year
End Date, the earnest money deposit remained unsettle. Having
considered the potential vendor’s background, creditworthiness
and liquidity condition, the Group considered that there are
significant increase in credit risk of the earnest money deposit
since initial recognition in which there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery. Thus, full amount of HK$4,870,000 had
been impaired against the earnest money deposit during the Year
and recognised in profit or loss in administrative expenses.

Except as disclosed in above in relation to the impairment loss
on earnest money deposit amounting to HK$4,870,000 (2019:
Nil) were made against the gross amount of other receivables
during the Year due to no reasonable expectation of recovery,
the Group considered the remaining balance’s ECL are low
based on historical settlement records and past experiences and
the counterparties have a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term.
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30.4 Credit risk (Continued) 304 5 E R @)
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30. Financial Risk Management and Fair V. BEABREERAFE Z
= Fo
Value Measurements (continued) 5T = @) o
. . . = -, B
30.5 Fair values measurements of financial VS5EMITEZAFEFE el
instruments 5
o
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the REEMBERIARPIEAFEST
consolidated statement of financial position are grouped into BExeREAERBEREA=M o
three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined EHZAFEEBE - =EAZRITIIE %)ﬁ
based on the observability of significant inputs to the BitEMBEE K@ AFE 2 85 g
measurements, as follows: BERE 0T :
. Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for o F14h - HREERBERE
identical assets and liabilities. Bmig s WmECRERAE) -
o Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within . BoW  FALPTH IRE S
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either A EEXEEER 2 EE
directly or indirectly, and not using significant unobservable skBEmAE BXIEFEH
inputs. BN A R A B o
o Level 3: significant unobservable inputs for the asset or o Fo  BERTABRZERE
liability. FBERAE-
The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial EeMEEZEE ESR  AFE
assets is categorised in its entirety is based on the lowest level of BHRZKIETERBAFESESR
input that is significant to the fair value measurement. BATEZREBABKFE -
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30. Financial Risk Management and Fair
Value Measurements (continued)

.FERBEERAFE
al B (&)

30.5 Fair values measurements of financial V5EMIT A LAFEFE
instruments (continued) (&)

The financial assets measured at fair value in the consolidated RERE BT ANEE X

Q3LIAM SONIATOH LNINLSIANI ALIHIHSOHd

statement of financial position on a recurring basis are grouped R ANFTEIFEZEREETZ
into the fair value hierarchy as follows: DEATHRAFERZEL :
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
1R H2Mk £34% st
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
B FHL  FAT  THET  TER

z
=
D 31 December 2020 2020128318
8 Financial assets at FVTPL BATEFABRRZ
° — Listed equity investments — FWRAEAERE

Financial asset at FVOCI BRAFETAEM

PHKEZEREE
— Unlisted equity investment —FLTRAKE 44,056
Total BEt 113,995

31 December 2019
Financial assets at FVTPL

201912 A31H
BAVFEFABRZ

— Listed equity investments — FTRAKRE 127,322 - - 127,322
Financial asset at FVOCI BAFEFAHM
TEHKR EREE
— Unlisted equity investment —JEEMIRAKRE — — 29,706 29,706
Total act 127,322 — 29,706 157,028

There were no transfers between the levels during the Year (2019:

Nil).

The fair value of financial assets at FVTPL was determined by
reference to the quoted bid price in the active market.
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30. Financial Risk Management and Fair 0.FHXEREERAFE &
Value Measurements (continued) T E @ =
|
30.5 Fair values measurements of financial V54 MITEZAFEENE E
instruments (Continued) (&) %
The information about the fair value of the unlisted equity ARBEFIRATEERFEY .
investment categorised under Level 3 fair value hierarchy are as FELHTERAEEATLEZER W -
follows: I %‘)ﬁ
Fair value as at Valuation technique(s) °
31 December and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s)
RERMRER
M12A31BZA¥E BWAE ERFUEHEE@BAE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET

44,056 29,706 Discounted cash flows Discount rate of 18.22% (2019: 17.98%)),
BRBEERE — BRIREB18.22% (20194 : 17.98%) :

Forecasted production volume of 220,000 (2019: 220,000)
tonnes per year,
— 8B E £ A& 4 220,000M (20194 : 220,000MF)

Forecasted selling price with base price of RMB1,809 (2019:
RMB1,627) per tonne and price changes over the
projection period; and

— FRRHEB AT A RK1,8097T (20194 - AR

1,627 L) R EEBRBAHANZ BRES : &

Marketability discount of 20.60% (2019: 20.60%)
— WIBRE M A 20.60% (20194 : 20.60%)
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30. Financial Risk Management and Fair
Value Measurements (continued)

30.5 Fair values measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

Note: A 2% increase or decrease in the discount rate used in isolation
would decrease or increase the fair value measurement of the
unlisted equity securities classified as financial asset at FVOCI
approximately by HK$5,577,000 (2019: HK$4,169,000) and
HK$6,490,000 (2019: HK$4,857,000), respectively.

A 10% increase or decrease in the forecasted production volume
used in isolation would increase or decrease the fair value
measurement of the unlisted equity securities classified as financial
assets at FVOCI approximately by HK$4,956,000 (2019:
HK$3,778,000) and HK$5,319,000 (2019: HK$4,271,000),
respectively.

A 10% increase or decrease in the forecasted selling price used in
isolation would increase or decrease the fair value measurement of
the unlisted equity securities classified as financial asset at FVOCI
approximately by HK$9,637,000 (2019: HK$7,933,000) and
HK$9,637,000 (2019: HK$7,933,000), respectively.

A 2% increase or decrease in the marketability discount used in
isolation would decrease or increase the fair value measurement of
the unlisted equity securities classified as financial assets at FVOCI
approximately by HK$1,110,000 (2019: HK$748,000) and
HK$1,110,000 (2019: HK$748,000), respectively.

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of its financial

assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to their fair values.
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30. Financial Risk Management and Fair
Value Measurements (continued)

30.5 Fair values measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
measurements of financial asset

30.3§J§LF§§$E&®$E

==N¢ )

S5ETMTAZAFENE

(#0)
THEEFIRAFET
B2 YR

Unlisted equity
securities classified
as financial assets

at FVOCI

PEREAFE

sFAH M2 E KR

ZEMEEZ

I LR ARE S

HK$'000

T T

At 1 January 2019 R2019%1 818 50,088
Loss recognised in other comprehensive REM>EREERZEIR

expenses (20,382)

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 7220194 12 A31 H &% 202041 A1 H 29,706
Gain recognised in other comprehensive READRE R #R2EE

income 14,350

At 31 December 2020 R2020%F 12 A31H 44,056

Investments in equity instruments at FVOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve.

31. Capital Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
accumulated losses.

The Directors review the capital structure regularly. As part of this
review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of
the Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues and share repurchase.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBEBE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020512831H IFFE

-
3 2016 2017 2018 2019
n
% HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
s} e — i — e — oy =
3 BT BT BT BT
=
<
)
e Results E45
g (Loss)/Profit for the year 4F [& (E518), % 7 (43,297) 160 (87,204) (78,496) (66,644)
5
©]
= Assets and liabilites EERE &
& Total assets BEMRE 321,543 384,174 298,278 193,105 129,668
= Total liabilities BfEBE (4,400) (60,131) (58,185) (51,890) (40,747)
g
— Net assets B R 317,137 324,043 240,093 141,215 88,921
= Net Assets Value per BB EHE
g Share (HK$) (BT 0.26 0.27 0.20 0.12
S
N
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In this annual report (other than the independent auditor’s report as set out
on pages 43 to 48), the following expressions shall have the following

meanings unless the context otherwise requires:

Adjusted NAV
KREEEFE

Associate(s)

BEAT

Board
g

BVI
REBRAHRS

CG Code

& ST 8

CODM
TERERKE

Company
ARAT]

Director(s)

4

ECL
BEHEEER

ESG Report

RE wHeglkEamE

GLOSSARY
R

RARFRA (H R FA3EL48E 2 B A% HAD &R
LHRIN) BRIENESEME TATIAE
BENNTHE

the Net Asset Value as at the end of the relevant Financial Year, adjusted by (A) excluding effects
attributed to the issue of new Shares, Share repurchase and fund raisings; and (B) adding back (i)
remuneration paid to the GC Capital or Opus Capital under the 2016 IM Agreement and 2019 IM
Agreement; and (i) dividends or distributions paid to Shareholders whether in cash or in specie
REBTBEFERNEEFE ERUTSHEFELAR  AFRBETHR ROBERE
BHFE: REMENRE2016FREE R # R2019FRETEH BN TEEERY
BZEERNME  ROABSHEYEZ N TRENR KD

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

ABLEWmRAM TZAZRE

the board of Directors

-

British Virgin Islands
REREIHS

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules

ETRAIMER14PTE 2 B EE AT

the chief operating decision maker

TERERKRE

Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability,
whose issued Shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

FEREBBRARAR

=i

the director(s) of the Company

KRABES

expected credit losses
EHEERE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B -HeMERRS
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GLOSSARY
AR

Financial Year

MREFE

FVOCI
BRAFEFAEMEE
Wz

FVTPL
BRAFEGFARR
GRH

IR AR

Group
REHE

HKAS
BB G ER

HKFRSs
BAMBREER

HKICPA
BRGNS

Hong Kong
e

INED(s)
BUENITES

Listing Rules
R A

the financial year of the Company during the Management Period

ARARREIRRE 2 W BRFE

fair value through other comprehensive income
BAFEFAEMEEEE

fair value through profit or loss
BAFE AR

GR Investment Holdings Limited, a limited company incorporated in the Hong Kong and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company

CREARBRAR  —HREBIMALZBRRAR  TAEAAZEENRB AR

the Company and its subsidiaries
RN E) R EME A A

the Hong Kong Accounting Standards issued by HKICPA
BEEGEHMRAGEM < BAESER

including individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA

BREREEGHMAGHEMIABEENBTEVHRERLL FEEGHENRRE

the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
RN

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
A B E B R BT IR

the independent non-executive Directors(s)

BMIATES

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
Bt AZFTRE A Em AR Al
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Management Period
& 12 B

MPF Scheme

RAE SRS

Model Code
AT A

Net Asset Value
BEFE

Opus Capital
BlE &R

PRC
2

Prosperity Management
RHEER

Share(s)

e

Shareholder(s)
A% =

SFO
& 77 R BB 1R 61

Stock Exchange

B 32 FfT

GLOSSARY
R

the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021 under 2019 IM Agreement
RIE2019F IR EE IR % 820191 A1 H £ 2021612 431 B [F#ifH

Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme established under Mandatory Provident Funds Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

RIFFBLADIF480ERFIMEAB R BRI MEM 2 RBIEAES S

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules

ETRAMEI0AEZ LM BETABSETESFRHNFETAI

the consolidated net asset value of the Group as reflected in its audited financial statements

AEERBEGYBBRRARRZGAEERE

Opus Capital Management Limited, the investment manager of the Group since 1 January 2019 that
provides investment management services to the Group and a private limited company incorporated in
Hong Kong and licensed to carry out Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under SFO

BEEAERERAQA  B2019F1A1ERAKEZRENKE BERASERHEREE
BR®E H-HEARBEEMRILZAABRRR RBBEEFLBEGRIIATETEIRGR
HEEEBR)XREEIZFHEA

People’s Republic of China, which for the purpose of this annual report, excludes Hong Kong, Macau
and Taiwan

PEARKNE  AFHEME  TRESS BARAE
Prosperity Management Services Limited, a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

FEBERBERAR  —HARBBEIMKRILZBERAR  AREAABZEZENB QA

share(s) of HK$0.025 each in the share capital of the Company
RAFRAF GREE0.02574 7T 2 R 1n

holder(s) of Share(s)
EVEST=IN

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BREOESNEERZSH KB K

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBMERHMBRAR
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GLOSSARY

=0 =

A 52

Systems the risk management and internal control systems of the Group

B AEBERRERRAMEITEZ ZR

USA United States of America

=3e £FBARE

Year year ended 31 December 2020

RERE HE2020F12 A31HILFE

Year End Date at 31 December 2020

F4H 7202012 A31H

Year 2019 year ended 31 December 2019

2019 FE BHZE2019F12A31 B L FE

2019 IM Agreement the agreement dated 18 December 2018 entered between the Company and Opus Capital regarding

2019 KR EEE HHE the appointment of Opus Capital as the Company’s investment manager for the period from 1
January 2019 to 31 December 2021
ARBHAZEERARETAEEARKTRAB2019F1 A1 AL E2021F12 431 8 LA
2B KB M AN2018F 12 18 B ET L 2

HK$ Hong Kong Dollar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BT BEEEEEEET

RMB Renminbi, the lawful currency of PRC

AR FEUEEEBARKE

Uusb United States Dollar, the lawful currency of USA

ET EREEEEEET
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. PROSPERITY INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Suite 2711, Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
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